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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (Formerly
known as EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE
LIMITED and EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

61-B, Udyog Vihar Surajpur,

Kasna Road, Gautam Buddha Nagar,

Greater Noida, Uttar Pradesh, India - 201306.

Report on the Audit of the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial
Statements of Epack Prefab Technologies Limited (formerly known as Epack Prefab Technologies
Private Limited and Epack Polymers Private Limited) (the “Company") and its subsidiaries (the
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”), which comprise the Special
Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2022, Special Purpose Ind AS
- Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Special
Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Special Purpose Ind AS
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and Special Purpose Ind AS
Consolidated Notes to the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(collectively referred to as the "Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the Consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 315t March 2022, its
Consolidated profit including Consolidated comprehensive income, Consolidated changes in
equity and its Consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. The aforesaid
Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended
31st March 2022, are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the basis of
preparation described in Note 1 of these Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Indian Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 55 of the consolidated financial statements, which describes that
Epack Prefab Solutions Private Limited and Epack Polymers Solutions Private Limited, the
subsidiaries of the Group, has reported a negative net worth of ¥ 93.15 Lakhs and 216.96 as
of 31st March 2022. The financial statements of the subsidiary have been prepared on a going
concern basis based on the parent company’s commitment to provide the necessary financial
and operational support.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use

The Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the
Company solely for the purpose of preparation of the Restated Consolidated Financial
Information as required under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended (the "ICDR Regulations") in
relation to the proposed Initial Public Offering of equity shares of the Company (“IPO”). As a
result, the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements may not be suitable for
any other purpose and are not Consolidated Financial Statements prepared pursuant to any
requirements under section 129 of the Act. The Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated
Financial Statements cannot be referred to or distributed or included in any offering document
or used for any other purpose except with our prior consent in writing. Our report is intended
solely for the purpose of preparation of the Restated Consolidated Financial Information and is
not to be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose without our prior written
consent.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for Special
Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Special Purpose Ind AS
Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated financial
position, Consolidated financial performance, Consolidated total comprehensive income,
Consolidated changes in equity and Consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. These responsibilities also include
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Ind
AS Consolidated Financial Statements, as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the special purpose Ind AS
Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from an error, as fraud may
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involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has internal financial controls with reference to special purpose Ind
AS Consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the special
purpose Ind AS Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the special purpose Ind AS
Consolidated Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the special purpose
Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of two Indian subsidiaries, whose financial
statements reflects the total assets of Rs. 769.28 Lakhs as at 31t March 2022, total
revenue of Rs. 0.00 Lakhs, total profit after tax of Rs. 2.44 Lakhs, total comprehensive
income of Rs. 2.44 Lakhs and net cash inflows / (outflows) of Rs. (0.11) Lakhs for the
year ended on that date, as considered in the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated
Financial Statements. The financial statements / financial information has been audited
by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of subsidiary, and our report
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in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the report of such other auditor.

Our opinion above on the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements,
and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in
respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the
reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information
certified by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As these Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared in compliance with aforesaid ICDR Regulations, reporting as required by the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act is not
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Special Purpose ind AS
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Special Purpose Ind AS
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Special Purpose Ind AS
Consolidated Statement of Cash flows and the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read
with relevant rules issued thereunder.

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as at 31t March, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as at 31st
March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

(f) As this Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared
in compliance with aforesaid ICDR Regulations, reporting as required with respect to the
adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, is not applicable.
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(9) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its Consolidated
financial position in its Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there was any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts that were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Group.

(@) The respective management of the Parent Company and its Subsidiary
Companies whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have
represented to us and to other auditors of such subsidiaries that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
respective Parent Company & its Subsidiaries Company to or in any other persons
or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Parent Company & such subsidiary
companies (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective management of the Parent Company and such other subsidiaries
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to
us and to other auditors of such subsidiaries, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the respective Parent Company or any other
Subsidiary Companies from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the respective Parent Company or such other Subsidiary Companies
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us and those performed by auditors of subsidiaries
companies whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Parent Company and its subsidiary Companies incorporated in India have
neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

For Talati & Talati LLLP
Chartered Accountants
10758WMW100377

CA. Manish Baxi
Partner
Membership Number: 045011
Place: Noida

Date: December 18, 2024

UDIN: 24045014BTZzYBH1521 .
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EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE

LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066

Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31st March 2022
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

Note
No.

As at 31st March 2022

| ASSETS

1 Non- Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capital Work - in - Progress
(¢} Investment Property
(d) Goodwill on Consolidation
(e) Intangible Assets
() Right of Use Assets
(9) Financial Assets

(i) Investments

(if) Others Financial Assets
(h) Other Non - Current Assets

Total Non - Current Assets

2 Current assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(iii). Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents
(iv) Loans & Advances
(v) Other Financial Assets

(c) Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

A Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature
(c) Other Equity
Equity Attributable to Owners of the Holding Group
Non Controlling Interest
Total Equity

B Liabilities
1 Non- Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Lease Liabilities
(i) Other Financial Liabilities
(b) Long Term Provisions
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities
(d) Other Non - Current Liabilities

Total Non - Current Liabilities

2A 10,334.43
2B 61.98
302.54
3 68.04
4 3,963.45
5 -
6 1.48
7 -
14,731.91
8 5,495.58
9 6,679.25
10 65.68
11 649.00
12 110.30
13 728.41
14 2,206.13
15,834.34
30,566.26
15A 387.54
158
15C 9,823.32
10,210.86
10,210.86
16 4,454.19
17 338.91
18 526.45
19 164.30
20 547.38
21

6,031.24




2 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 2,810.51
(i) Lease Liabilities 23 38.96
(i) Trade Payables 24
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises: and -
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 8,158.82
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 25 1,456.01
(b) Short Term Provisions 26 148.02
(c) Liability for Current Tax (Net) 27 368.27
(d) Other Current Liabilities 28 1,343.56
Total Current Liabilities 14,324.16
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 30,566.26
Material Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements.
As per our Report of even date
For Talati & Talati LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants For EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB
FRN: 58W100377 TECHNOLOGIES PQ;VATE LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)
2
2~ Dz Q@‘{N«J @ X
CA Manish Baxi f Mr. Bajrang Bothra  Mr. Rahul Agarwal Mrs. Nikita Singh
Partner H Managing Director & CEQ Chairman Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &
i Complaince Officer
Membership No. 0450, DIN: 01291342 DIN: 00129286
Place : Noida Place: Noida Place: Noida Place: Noida Place: Noida
Date : 18-12-2024 Date: 18-12-2024 Date: 18-12-2024 Date: 18-12-2024 Date: 18-12-2024




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066

Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

Amount in Lacs

: Note| Year ended 31st March
Particulars No. 2022
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
! INCOME

Revenue from Operations 29 45,010.56
Other Income 30 310.82
Total Income 45,321.38
1t EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 31 31,806.25
Purchases of Traded Goods 32 -
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-In-Trade and Work-In-Progress 33 (687.43)
Employee Benefits Expense 34 3,025.98
Finance Costs 35 551.47
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 36 702.71
Other Expenses 37 7,311.79
Total Expenses 42,710.77
Il Restated Profit / (loss) before share of Profit / {Loss) of Associate and Exceptional Items and Tax 2,610.61
IV Share of Profit / (loss) of Associate -
V  Restated Profit before execeptional items and tax 2,610.61
VI Exceptional Item
VIl Restated Profit / (loss) before tax 2,610.61
Vil Tax expense
Current Tax 38 637.57
Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit) 38 20.58
Tax in Respect of Earlier Years 38 0.20
IX  Restated Profit/(Loss) for the year from Continuing Operations 1,952,26
X Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurements of Net Defined Benefit Plans 22.36
Income Tax Relating to Above Items 38 (5.63)
(ii) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Difference due to changes in foreign exchange reserves
Restated Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax 16.73
Xl Restated Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,968.99
Restated Profit Attributable to :
Owners of the Holding Group: 1,962.26
Non Controiling Interest : -
Restated Profit for the year 1,952.26
Restated Other Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Group : 16.73
Non Controlling Interest : -
Restated Other Comprehensive Income for the year 16.73
Restated Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Group : 1,968.99
Non Controliing Interest : -
Restated Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,968.99
X Earnings per equity share of ¥ 2 each {for continuing operation): 39
Basic EPS (%) 252
Diluted EPS (¥) 2.52
Material Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date

For Talati & Talati LLP For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Aegountants For EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB

FRN: 140758 AMIK P08 N

CAM

Partner Chairman Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 045011;\“5& 1291342 DIN: 00129286

Place: Noida i £ é%‘: Noida Place: Noida Place: Noida

Date: 18-12-2024 s D% K&E 8-12-2024 Date: 18-12-2024 Date: 18-12-2024
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Mr. Bajrang Bothra Mr>Rahul Agarwal
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rs. Nikita Singh

Company Secretary &
Complaince Officer

Place: Noida
:Date: 18-12-2024




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN - U74999UP1999PLC 116066

Special Purpose ind AS Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2022

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

Amountin Lacs

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2022
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Restated Profit before exceptional ltems and tax as per statement of profit and loss 2,610.61
Adjustments for: -
Depreciation and amortization expenses 702.71
Finance cost on Borrowings and Lease Liability 551.47
Transfer to Reserve & FCTR Adjustment -
Share of loss in associate -
Unrealised profit on stocks -
Adjustment for MAT Credit -
Adjustment for Expected Credit Loss -
Sundry Balances written back -
Dividend income -
Interest income (36.12)
Rent Income -
Fair Valuation of Investments through Profit and Loss -
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans 22.36
Gain on loss of significant Influence of Associate -
(Profit)/ ioss on sale of Land Rights (167.79)
Gain on loss of control of Subsidiary -
(Profit)/ loss on sale of fixed assets (net) 0.62
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,683.85
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/decrease in Trade Receivables (2,332.67)
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories (3,230.73)
(Increase)/decrease in Other Non current Financial Assets 24.20
(Increase)/decrease in Other Financial Assets 34.53
(Increase)/decrease in Other Non Current Assets 201.50
(Increase)/decrease in Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalent 296.33
(Increase)/decrease in Short Term Loans (26.73)
(Increase)/decrease in Investment -
(Increase)/decrease in Other Current Assets (1,287.75)
Increase/(decrease) in Long Term Provisions (2.27)
Increase/(decrease) in Other Non Current Liability -
Increase/(decrease) in Trade & other payables 5,291.44
Increase/(decrease) in Short Term Provisions 86.07
Increase/(decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (820.97)
Increase/(decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 1,218.87
Increase/(decrease) in Other Long Term Financiat Liabilities 231.97
Increase/(decrease) in Current Tax Liability -
3,367.63
Less: Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (481.32)
2,886.31
Less: Exceptional ltems
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities after exceptional items (A) 2,886.31
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Inflows -
Sale proceeds / (Purchase) of property, plant and equipment 40.65
Sale proceeds / (Purchase) of Investments / Loss of Control -
Interest received 36.12
Proceeds from Sale of Land Rights 1,181.51
Dividend received from others -
Outflows -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets (4,707.13)
Purchase of Investments -
Additions in ROU Asset (2,950.55)
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities.(B)... (6,399.41)

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Inflows




Proceeds from issue of Shares -
Proceeds from Short term Borrowings 499.99

Proceeds from long term Borrowings 2,977.02
Increase / (Decrease) in Lease Liability 232.21
Outflows

Repayment of Long term Borrowings -
Repayment Short term Borrowings -

Dividend Paid -
Receipt/Payment of Share application money -
Finance Cost on Lease Liability (16.58)
Finance Cost on borrowings (534.88)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) 3,157.76
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Bank Balances (A+B+C) (355.33)
Add : Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year 421.01
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the year 65.68

Cash and Cash equivalent as per above comprises of the following

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 10) 65.68
Bank Balances Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 11) 649.00
Balances as per Statement of Cash Flows 65.68

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements.

Notes:
() The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7, "Statement of Cash Flows", whereby profit/ (loss) before
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature. The cashflows from operating, investing and financing activities of
the Group are segregated based on the available information.

(iy Additions to property, plant, equipment and intangible assets include movements of capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development
respectively during the year.

As per our Report of even date

For Talati & Talati LLP For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered.Accountants For EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB
RANAA TECHNOLOGIE\?& ATE LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)
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eoﬁ\r njay Singhania Mr. Bajrang Bothra Mr)Rahul Agarwal Mrs. Nikita Singh
Partner naging Director & CEQ Chairman Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &
Complaince Officer
Membership No. 045011 DIN: 01291342 DIN: 00129286
Place: Noida Ptace: Noida Place: Noida Place: Noida Place: Noida

Date : 18-12-2024 Date: 18-12-2024 Date: 18-12-2024 Date: 18-12-2024 Date: 18-12-2024
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EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (Formerly known as Epack Prefab
Technologies Private Limited and Epack Polymers Private Limited)
U74999UP1999PL.C116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended on 315t March 2022:

Corporate information:

EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (formerly known as “EPACK PREFAB
TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED” and “EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED”) (the
‘Holding Company’) having CIN U74999UP1999PLC116066 is a public unlisted company
incorporated in India. The registered office of the Holding Company is located at 61-B, Udyog
Vihar Surajpur, Kasna Road, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Greater Noida, Uttar Pradesh, India -
201306.

The Holding Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of EPS (Expanded
Polystyrene) Packaging and Pre-engineered and Prefabricated Building Solutions.

The Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement is prepared for the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries and associate together referred to as the (the “Group”).

The Holding Company, its subsidiary (jointly referred to as the 'Group' herein under) and it's
associate are considered in these Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Information.
The Holding Company has converted from a Private Limited Company to a Public Limited
Company, pursuant to a resolution of shareholders passed in the extraordinary general
meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on December 04, 2024 and consequently
the name of the Company has changed to Epack Prefab Technologies Limited vide Certificate
issued by ROC on December 11, 2024.

‘g % of Holding as at Country of . .
Name of the Subsidiary 31% March 2022 Incorporation Principal Activity
Epack Prefab Solutions o . Manufacturing of
Private Limited 100% India Expandable Beads
Manufacturing of
. Electronics Goods &
Epack Petrochem Solutions 100% India Component, EPS
Private Limited ' Resin ano’l its
finished products

Summary of basis of compliance, basis of preparation & measurement, key accounting
estimates & judgements and material accounting policies:

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements.

Basis of compliance:
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The Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2022, the Holding Company
prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting standards
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

The Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group comprises, the
Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Balance sheet, the Special Purpose Ind AS
Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity and the Special
Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows as at and for the year ended March
31, 2022 and the Material Accounting Policies and explanatory notes (collectively, referred to
as ‘Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements’).

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group as at and for the year ended March 31,
2022 prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of
the act read with the relevant rules issued thereunder (Indian GAAP), and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, were audited by us, vide report dated 23 August, 2022
expressed an unmodified opinion on those Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement have been prepared by the
Holding Company after giving effect to the recognition and measurement principles of the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies act, 2013 read
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), rules 2015 as amended, to the above
Consolidated Financial Statements prepared as per Indian GAAP in Compliance with
securities (Issue of Capital and Disclosure) Requirements Regulations 2018 (.CDR
Regulations ) for the purpose of inclusion of the same in, the Draft Red Herring Prospectus
(‘DRHP’) prepared by the Holding Company in connection with the proposed Initial Public offer
of equity shares (IPQO’) of the Holding Company. The opening balances as at April 01, 2021
are classified on account of the above restatement of the Audited Consolidated Financial
Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Holding Company in
preparation of the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements and are
consistent with those initially adopted at the date of transition to Ind AS (i.e. April 01, 2021) for
preparation of Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for
the year ended March 31, 2022.

All amounts included in the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements are
reported in Indian Rupees (“INR” or “Rs.”), which is also the Holding Company'’s functional
currency. All the values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs (INR 00,000) up to two decimals,
except otherwise indicated.

These special purpose Ind AS consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian
Kupees (INR) which is also the Group’s functional currency.
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These Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements have been approved by
the board of directors at its meeting held on December 18, 2024

Basis of preparation and presentation:

Accounting Convention:

The Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements has been prepared in
accordance with Ind AS 110 - "Consolidated Financial Statements" issued under relevant
provisions of the Act.

Historical cost convention:
The Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured
at fair value;
i. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair valye (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments) and
ii.  Defined benefits plan — plan assets are measured at fair value.

Current versus non-current classification:
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; or

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period: or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; or

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities
respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Key accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions:
The preparation of the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements in

onformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgements and
k‘%f ",
¢




assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated
Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex
and subjective judgements and the use of assumptions in these Special Purpose Ind AS
Consolidated Financial Statements have been disclosed in the notes below:

. Judgments:

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements.

(a) Leases: _
The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option o terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The Group applies judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That s, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant
event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise
or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant
leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

. Estimates and assumptions:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, are described below. Accounting estimates could
change from period to period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Appropriate
changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the Special Purpose Ind AS
Consolidated Financial Statements in the period in which changes are made and if material,
then effects are disclosed in the notes to the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(a) Taxes:

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations, changes in tax
laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of
business relationships differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions
made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to
tax income and expense already recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on
J;easonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such
as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the
, %%@ﬁgb!e entity and the responsible tax authority.
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(b) Defined benefit plans:

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the
complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The same is disclosed in Note 40,
‘Employee Benefit Expense’.

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments:
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance
sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques, including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model,
which involve various judgements and assumptions.

(d) Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment represents significant portion of the asset base of the
Group. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an
estimate of assets expected useful life and expected value at the end of its useful life. The
useful life and residual value of Group's assets are determined by management at the
time asset is acquired and reviewed periodically including at the end of each reporting
period. The useful life is based on historical experience with similar assets, in anticipation
of future events, which may have impact on their life such as change in technology or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production or from a
change in market demand of the product or service output of the asset.

Material Accounting Policies:
Basis / Principles of Consolidation

Subsidiary:

A subsidiary is an entity that is, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Holding Company.
Controls exists when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, has power over the investee,
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, loses
control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss from the date the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, gains control until the date
when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, ceases to control the subsidiary.

The Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements relating to "EPACK PREFAB
TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED" (The Holding Company).and its subsidiaries have been prepared
on the following basis:




_Business Combinations
A

(@) The Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together items of
assets, liabilities, equity, incomes, expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating intra-
group balances and intragroup transactions resulting in unrealised Profit / (Loss) in
accordance with the Ind AS 110 “Consolidated Financial Statements”. The accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been harmonised to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Holding Company.

(b) Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognized in assets,
such as Inventory, are eliminated in full.

(c) The Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared
using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the
Holding Company’s Special Purpose Ind A3 Standalone Financial Statements.

(d) The carrying amount of the Holding Company’s investment in each subsidiary is offset
(eliminated) against the Holding Company’s portion of the equity in each subsidiary.

(e) Non-controlling interest represents that part of the total comprehensive income and net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned, directly or indirectly, by
the Holding Company.

(f) Loss of Control:
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

i. Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary.

ii. Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests.

iii. Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity.

iv. Recognises the fair value of the consideration received.

v. Reclassifies the parent's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

vi. Recognises the fair value of any investment retained.

vii. Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss.

Associates

Investment in entities in which there exists significant influence but not a controlling interest
are accounted for under the equity method i.e. the investment is initially recorded at cost,
identifying any goodwill/ capital reserve arising at the time of acquisition, as the case may be,
which will be inherent in investment. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in the share of net assets of the investee, adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies of the Group. The Special
Purpose Ind AS Consolidated statement of profit and loss includes the Group's share of the
results of the operations of the investee.

P
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Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. At the acquisition date, the
identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date
fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing
present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the
fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable.

Property, plant and equipment:

Recognition and measurement:

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial
recognition at its cost. Following the initial recognition, all items of property, plant and
equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation, and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly attributable cost of bringing
the item to its working condition for its intended use and the initial estimate of
decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Such cost also includes the cost of
replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Other indirect expenses incurred
relating to project, net of income earned during the project development stage prior to its
intended use, are considered as pre-operative expenses and disclosed under capital work-in-
progress.

ltems such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalised at cost and depreciated over their
useful life,

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment. The Group has carried out technical analysis for identification of significant
components with different useful life with that of useful life of the original assets to which it
belongs. However, based on technical analysis carried out by the plant’s technical personnel,
it has been observed that the useful lives of significant components are approximately
equivalent to those of the original assets to which they belong. Consequently, separate useful
lives are not assigned to significant components. All the significant components are
depreciated based on the same useful life with that of original assets to which it belongs.

Subsequent Expenditure:

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and cost of the item can be measured
reliably.
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Depreciation:

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment of Holding Company is provided to the
extent of depreciable amount on the Straight Line Method (SLM) however the Epack
Petrochem Solutions Private Limited provides the Depreciation on Written Down Value (WDV)
Method. Depreciation is provided by the Group based on useful life of the assets as prescribed
in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 Freehold land is not depreciated. Useful life
considered for calculation of depreciation for various classes of assets are as under:

Asset class ' Useful life (Years)
Building ' 30
_______ e
8-10
10
| Electrical Installation (Fittings) / Plant & Machinery | 10/15

The useful lives, residual values of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment and
the depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. If any of these
expectations differs from previous estimates, such change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate and adjusted prospectively.

De-recognition:
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress:

Projects under which tangible assets are not yet ready for their intended use and other capital
work-in-progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and
attributable borrowing costs. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding
at each balance sheet date are disclosed as other non-current assets (Capital Advances) and
not included as a part of capital work-in-progress.

Costs incurred during the period of implementation of a project, till it is commissioned, is
accounted as capital work-in-progress and  after commissioning the same s
transferred/allocated to the respective item of property, plant and equipment.

Investment property:

Recognition and measurement:

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is
not occupied by the Group, is classified as investment property. Policies with respect to
depreciation, useful life and de-recognition are followed on the same basis as stated for
property, plant and equipment above.
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Though the Group measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair
value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on
an annual evaluation performed by an external independent valuer.

Transfer of property from investment property to the property, plant and equipment is made
when the property is no longer held for long term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both at carrying amount of the property transferred.

Intangible assets:

Recognition and Measurement:

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
attributable to the assets will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Subsequent Expenditure:

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relutes. All other expenditure is recognised in
statement of profit and loss in the period in which expenditure is incurred.

Amortisation:

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the estimated useful economic life using
the Straight Line Method (SLM). The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The estimated useful life of intangible assets
as determined by the Group is mentioned as below:

__Sr.No. | Assetclass | . Useful lfe (Years)
-1 Computersofware - . 815 |
Leases:

The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of ind
AS 1186. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment.

The Group uses judgment in assessing whether a contract (or part of contract) include a lease,
the lease term (including anticipated renewals), the applicable discount rate, variable lease
payments whether are in-substance fixed. The judgment involves assessment of whether the
asset included in the contract is a fully or partly identified asset based on the facts and
circumstances, whether the contract include a lease and non-lease component and if so,
separation thereof for the purpose of recognition and measurement, determination of lease
term basis, inter alia the non-cancellable period of lease and whether the lessee intends to
opt for continuing with the use of the asset upon the expiry thereof, and whether the lease
payments are fixed are variable or a combination of both.

%\The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the

e Al

ubstance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains,
\@%@se if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
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and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Right of Use Assets:

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-
measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of lease.

Lease Liabilities:

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, or a change in the lease payment

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets:

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases /rent
(i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). In addition, these leases also meet the criteria for the
low-value asset lease recognition exemption, as the constituent components are deemed to
be of low individual value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments:
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial
recognition. The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

. Financial assets:

Initial recognition and measurement:
All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly

=2 gitributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets, which are not at fair value through

,;mw»mﬁ,ﬁﬁf@&|oss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial
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Subsequent measurement:

(a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it meets the following criteria:

i) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows, and

if) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on a specified date to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.

(b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

(FVTOCI):

A financial asset is measured at FVTOC] if it meets the following criteria:

i) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and

ii) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
represents solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

The Group has made an irrevocable election for its investments which are classified as equity
instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income
based on its business model.

On de-recognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is not reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss.

(c) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
Afinancial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets are reclassified subsequent to their recognition, if the Group changes its
business model for managing those financial assets. Changes in business model are made
and applied prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of immediately
next reporting period following the changes in business model in accordance with principles
laid down under Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments.

(d) Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures:

The Group has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture at
cost less impairment loss (if any) in accordance with Ind AS 27 — Separate Financial
Statements.

(e) Other equity investments:

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in
statement of profit and loss, except for those equity investments for which the Group has
elected to present the value changes in other comprehensive income. However, dividend on
such equity investments is recognised in statement of profit and loss when the Group’s right
to receive payment is established.

N acterdance with Ind AS 109, the Group uses 'Expected Credit Loss' (ECL) model, for
g impairment of financial assets other than those measured at Fair Value Through
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Profit and Loss (FVTPL). Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at
an amount equal to:

* The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default
events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date); or

* Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the life of the financial instrument).

For trade receivables the Group applies 'simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Group uses historical
default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At each
reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

For other assets, the Group uses 12-months ECL method to provide for impairment loss where
there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk, full
lifetime ECL method is used.

Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognised at fair value and in case of borrowings, net of directly
attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the statement of profit and
loss as finance cost.

Subsequent measurement:

Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade
and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

De-recognition of financial instruments:

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-
recognition under Ind AS 109. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset
and the proceeds received are recognized as borrowing.

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the balance sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Offsetting:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
balance sheet when, and only when, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amount and it intends, either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. :

Fair value measuremenig )
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The Group measures financial instruments, such as, investments, derivatives at fair value at
each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability,
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their best economic interest. The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable
inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial
Statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, which gives
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs.

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that

- are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped
together into cash generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smailest group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market

Vm%ass%sments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).
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The Group’s corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to various
CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate
asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to other
comprehensive income. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus. An impairment
loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the
Group reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the
extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Foreign currencies transactions and translation:

Functional and Presentation Currency:

ltems included in the special purpose Ihd AS Consolidated financial statements are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the
functional currency'). The Group’s special purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements
are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) which is also the Group’s functional and presentation
currency.

Initial recognition:

On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies entered by the Group are recorded in
the functional currencies, by applying to the foreign currency rate, the spot exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date:

Foreign currency monetary items (monetary assets and liabilities) of the Group are translated
at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a
foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-
monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency, are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is measured.

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Cash and cash equivalents:

The Group considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having
original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.
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Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for
withdrawal and usage.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligatior (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is-

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

() it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation or
(ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of
amount cannot be made.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from the past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are disclosed in the Special
Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Revenue recognition (Revenue from Contracts with Customers):

The Group derives revenue primarily from sale of manufactured products being “EPS
(Expanded Polystyrene) Packaging and Pre-engineered and Prefabricated Building
Solutions”. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of the
goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

(a) Sale of goods and services:

Revenue from sale of goods (including cartage) / services are recognised at the point of
time when control of the promised goods/services are transferred to the customer,
. generally on dispatch/delivery of the goods/services except in case of export sales,
=4 7>Which are recognised on the basis of bill of lading on satisfaction of performance
“\¢pWligation and transfer of control.
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Sale of goods/services are recognised net of sales returns and trade discounts. Sales
excludes amounts of indirect taxes on sales.

Sale of Pre-engineered and Prefabricated Building Contracts:

In respect of Pre-engineered and Prefabricated Building Contracts, revenue is
recognised over a period of time. using the input method (equivalent to percentage-of-
completion method) of accounting with contract costs incurred determining the degree
of completion of the performance obligation.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration,
adjusted for volume discounts, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in
the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers
on behalf of the government.

Contracts are combined when the Group believes the underlying goods and services
are a single performance obligations, single commercial objectives or the consideration
in one contract depends on another. Otherwise, contracts are separated.

With respect to contracts where revenue is recognised over time, the Group measures
the value of services for which control is transferred to the customer over time based on
certification of work completed.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which such probability occurs. Due to the uncertainties attached, the revenue
on account of extra claims are accounted for at the time of acceptance / settlement by
the customers.

Liquidated Damages represents the expected claim which the Group may need to pay
for non-fulfilment of certain commitments as per terms of respective sales contracts.
These are determined on case to case basis considering the dynamics of each contracts
and factors relevant to that sale.

Installation Services:

The Group provides installation services that are bundled together with the sale of
products to a customer. Contracts for bundled sale of products and installation services
are considered as one performance obligations because company believes underlying
goods and services are a single performance obligations single commercial objectives
or the consideration in one contract depends on another. Hence the installation services
has been considered as a part of Sale of Pre-engineered building contracts.

Sale of Building Materials:

Revenue from sale of Building Materials are recognised at a point in time when control
of the asset is transferred to the customers generally on delivery of goods/materials.
The payment terms depend upon each contract entered into with the customer.

Variable Consideration:




If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimate the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods
to the customers. The variable consideration is estimated at the contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Significant Financing Component:

The Group applies the practical expedient for short term advances received from
customers. That is, the promised amount of consideration is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component if the year between the transfer of the promised
goods or service and the payment is one year or less.

(b) Contract Balances:

i) Contract Assets:
Revenue earned but not billed to customers against erection and sale of goods
and services is reflected as Contract Assets because the receipt of consideration
is conditional on Group’s performance under the contract (i.e. transfer control of
related goods or services to the Customers). On completion of installation and
acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract asset is
reclassified to Trade Receivables.

Contract Assets are subject to impairment assessment (refer material
accounting policies related to impairment of financial assets).

ii) Contract Liabilities:
A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or payment is due
(whichever is earlier) from a contract before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e. transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customers).

(c) Dividend and interest income:
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's right to receive the
payment has been established, which is generally when shareholders approve the
dividend.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI), interest income is recorded using the effactive
@t@{est rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash

mpa’yments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
kY




period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the
amortised cost of a financial liability. Interest income is included in other income in the
statement of profit and loss.

(d) Rental income:
Rental income from investment property is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
over the term of the lease.

(e) Insurance claims:
Claims receivable on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent no significant
uncertainty exists for the measurement and realisation of the amount.

Insurance claims, other than claim filed against fire accident, have been booked on
receipt basis.

(f) Miscellaneous income:
All other income is recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in its
ultimate realization/collection.

1.18 Government grants, subsidies and export incentives:
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with.
Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and
presented within other income.
Government grants/subsidies relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are
deducted from the Carrying amount of the Assets. The Grant is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss over the useful life of the depreciable assets.

1.19 Inventories:
Inventories have been valued on the following basis:

Nature of inventories Basis of inventories valuation
Inventories of raw materials are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Raw material stock Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is determined on weighted average basis. Cost of raw
material excludes all taxes and duties.

Semi-finished (WIP) goods stocks are valued at cost plus
appropriate overheads directly attributable to manufacturing
activity.

Inventories of finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Semi-finished (WIP)
goods stock

Finished goods stock
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Cost represents material, labour and manufacturing expenses
and other incidental costs to bring the inventory in present
location and condition.
Packing material stock Packing material stocks are valued at cost.
Stores & spares and
Consumables Stock
Stock in transit Stock in transit stocks are valued at material cost.
Further imported goods received and laying at port as at balance sheet date and the same is
received in factory during the subsequent month has been included in Inventories as goods in
transit as at balance sheet date.

Stores & spares and Consumables stocks are valued at cost.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by item basis. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Employee benefits expense:

Short-Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term employee benefits and they are recognised in the period in which the
employee renders the related services. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.

Post-Employment Benefits

Defined contribution plans:

The Group's contribution paid/payable during the period to Provident fund, Superannuation
Fund and Pension Scheme and other welfare funds are considered as defined contribution
plans.

Recognition and measurements of defined contribution plan:
The contribution paid/payable under those plans are recognised as an expense, in the
statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the services.

If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a
liability. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the
pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans:

The Group pays gratuity to the employees who have completed five years of service with the
Group at the time of resignation superannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 days’ basic salary
for every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

§%X nd measurements of defined benefit plan:
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The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the
projected unit credit method and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected
to be derived from employees’ services.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

Tax expenses:

The tax expenses for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is
recognised in statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

(a) Current tax:

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible under the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961,

Current tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting
period for the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Current tax assets andnliabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the income tax authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted
at the balance sheet date.

(b) Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the Special purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settied or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities
and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
benefits of part or all of such deferred tax assets to be utilised.

(c) Minimum alternate tax (MAT):

MJ@X»QIOVISIOHS to the extent MAT liability.
e N
e

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised if there is convincing evidence that the
Group will pay normal tax after the tax holiday period and the resultant asset can be
measured reliably. The excess tax paid under MAT provisions, being over and above
regular tax liability, can be carried forward for a period of the years from the year of
recognition and is available for set off against future tax liabilities computed under regular

%§%§
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(d) Presentation of current and deferred tax:
Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or an expense in the statement of
profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the current and deferred tax income/expense are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
on the Group.

Borrowing costs:
Borrowing costs includes interest & exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale
are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expensed in the period in which they occur.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving the basic earnings per share and the weighted
average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

Segment Reporting (Operating Segment):

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly
reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make decisions for which
discrete financial information is available.

The Group identifies operating segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and
return and the internal organisation and management structure and for which discrete financial
information is available. The CODM monitors the operating results of the segments for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies

wmawted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Group as a whole.
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The operating segment has been identified and reported taking into account its internal
financial reporting, performance evaluation and organizational structure of its operations.
Operating segment is reported in the manner evaluated by board, considered as chief
operating decision maker under Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

The Group has two segment of activity, namely “Manufacturing of EPS (Expanded
Polystyrene) Packaging and Pre-engineered and Prefabricated Building Solutions”, in
accordance with the definition of “Segment” covered under Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) 108 on operating segments.

Cash flow statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before extraordinary
items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals
or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based on the available
information.

Events occurred after the balance sheet date:

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that
existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the
Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements. Otherwise, events after the
balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.




|es0ds|p 40} P[aY PUE 8SN SANOE WOl paInal 3dd

Auadoud juawnsanug
sjustudinb3g g jue)d fAadoid

dnioi ayy jo
aweu ay3 w ppay Butaq jJou 10 uoseay

JIIBP YIIYM 3oUis
ppy Auadoid

Jo3oanpuajowold
10 aakojdwa 40 10393.1p/,43)0woad
4O 2ARRjRL Jo Jojoaulp ‘Uszowosd
© S1.19p|0Y PIdp opy JSYIPYM

40 3wey Yy Ul pIRY SpPIvp L

anfea
Buwihries ssoug

Auadosd Jo way jo uonduossg

399Ys aouejeg A} Ul WY SUY LAY

S9€7 U] Juhoury

2202 Yddep ISiE Je sy

®

:MO[2q paiedipul SE ale dnoio) ay) Jo alLeu ay) Ul PIdY JoU BB Uojum sajpiadold ajgBAOWIL) JO SPeap ofl} Ul YT

dnoJs sy Jo aweu sy} ul pjay aJe spouad Buruodas || Ul sapsadosd ajqeAowILI Iy
dnol su Aq Aiunoss sz pabpald jusdinbs 3 el ‘Ausdoid 0) pajejes uoREWLO) o) ZZ '8 9 SI0N J8jey (1)

13JON
EYYEEDL 00°52 ¥£'652 ] ¥8°0C 8ETLTL SvI8T E T20Z Y24Bl ISLE Je SE adue|eg
unowy burlue) JoN
2£°01L'S 19°'¥8 $5°82 Ly'LoL 9y°98 2TLSEY £1°618 - 2202 Y2IBN ISLE I8 SE ddURleq
(29'82) - (v2'ez) - - 76%3) - - Jeak sy Buunp sjusuisnipessiesodsig
6Z°€P9 1N 4 ozer 8l z08 o' LIS 82'€9 - Jeak sy Buunp suonppy
8Lsvl's sy'ee 60'992 £TY6 baa i 0L¥68°c §8°152 - 1202 |udy IS} 38 s aouejeg
uoneasdag pajeinwnaoy
18'v10'9L 19'68 68°0¥5 §8°201 0€'201 15°695°}} 65'629°¢ - TTOZ Y4Bl ISLE Je Se ddUuE|eg
(r8'8L4) - (ryes) - - {05°'98) - teaf 3y} Buunp spuswisnipe/siesodsiq
0y'y09'y ¥5'9L 0z'ezL - e 20'558'C 22'209'L Jseaf ayy Buunp suonippy
¥E£'095°L1 90'€L VLY 6820} 88'66 90°'18L'8 9€°.20°T 1Z0Z 1udy 1S} Je se aouejeg
junowy Buliue) ssoig

sawdinbg
2301 som0 sa[ayan s1andwio) ampuwing Kiauiyoepy g Jueld Buippng Liojoed pue pjoysald sipjnotyed

(m

987 U Junowy

uawdinb3g pue Juelq Apsdotg

vZ

Pa}E)S 9SIMIBYI0 SSBJUN SIBT YN Uf 348 SJUNCWe ||y
TZ0Z YaIepy 151 papua tesk ayj ioj Juauiale)s [e1duBUI] PBJEPIIOSUO0) SY puj asoding [eisads 0] Sa10N
990911071d6661dN666Y.LN - NID
(@I LI 3LVARI SHINATO MOV QILINIT ILVAR SAIDOTONHITL V43 d MOVd3 SY NMONM ATHIWHOH) QI LINIT SIID0TIONHOIL GV 4TNd Movda




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999P1L.C116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financia! Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

2B Capital Work in Progress

Amount in Lacs

Tangible
Assets under

Particulars Construction or
Installation
Balance as at 1st April 2021 -
Additions during the year 61.98
Capitalised during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2022 61.98

2B.1 Capital Work in Progress

(iy As at 31st March 2022

Amount in Lacs

Projects temporarily suspended

Tangible
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Assets u.nder
year years Construction or
Installation
Projects in progress 61.98 - 61.98

* None of the projects has exceeded it's cost compared to it's original plan

3 Intangible Assets

Amount in Lacs

Particulars Computer
Software
Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at 1st April 2021 141.63
Additions during the year 40,75
Disposals/adjustments during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2022 182.39
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1st April 2021 97.80
Additions during the year 16.55
Disposals/adjustments during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2022 114,35
Net Carrying Amount
Balance as at 31st March 2022 68.04

4  Right of Use Asset

Amount in Lacs

Particulars Land
Gross Carrying Amount

Balance as at 1st April 2021 1,091.19
Additions during the year 2,950.55
Disposals/adjustments during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2022 4,041.74
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April 2021 35.42
Additions during the year 42,87
Disposals/adjustments during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2022 78.29
Net Carrying Amount

Balance as at 31st March 2022 3,963.45




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPAC

EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

5  Non - Current Investments

K PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

As at 31st March 2022

Number of Shares/Units/
Quota

Amount

A Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures
Unquoted

(i) Equity instruments measured at cost
Epack Prefab Solutions Private Limited (Formerly known as Epack
Buildcon Private Limited)
Epack Petrochem Solutions Private Limited (Formerly known as E-
Durables Electronics Pvt Ltd)

Total (A)
B Investment in Other Equity Instruments
Unquoted
At Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Total (B)
o] Investment in Mutual Funds
Quoted
At Fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
HDFC Index Fund - Nifty 50

Total (C)

Non-current Investments total (A+B+C)

Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments

Aggregate fair value of quoted investments

Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments
Aggregate fair value of unquoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS
PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

6

2.1

Other Non - Current Financial Assets

Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022

Amountin Lacs

. As at 31st
Particulars March 2022
Balances with Banks - In deposit A/c 1.38
Fixed Deposits
Loans to related parties -
Security Deposits 0.11
Total 1.48

Other Non - Current Assets

Amountin Lacs

. As at 31st
Particulars March 2022
Advnaces to Vendor for Capital goods -
Total -
Inventories

Amount in Lacs

. As at 31st
Particulars March 2022
Raw Materials 3,586.14
Work-in Progress 941,75
Finished goods 228,08
Packing Material 41,43
Stores & Spares 284.91
Stock in Transit (FG) 391.17
Consumables 2211
Total 5,495.58

Trade Receivables

Amount in Lacs

) As at 31st
Particulars March 2022
Unsecured, considered good
- To Related Parties 801.46
- To Others 5,917.63
Less: Provision for Expected Credit Allowances (Refer Note 47) (139.83)
Total 6,579.25

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule

As at 31st March 2022

Amount in Lacs

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 6 6 months -1 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More than 3 Total
months year years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 6,223.53 264.47 62.45 17.62 19.42 6,587.49
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase - - - - 5.68 5.68
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -— credit impaired - - - - (13.92) (13.92)
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — considered good - - - 125.91 - 125.91
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in - - - - - -

& - - - (125.91) - (125.91)




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN - U74999UP1999PL.C116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Amaountin Lacs
Particulars As at 31st March 2022
Cash on hand 36.02
Balances with Schedule Banks - In current accounts 29.65
Balances with Banks - In Over Draft A/c -
Total 65.68
11 Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents
Amount in Lacs
Particulars As at 31st March 2022
Balances with Banks - In deposits Alc 649.00
Total 649.00
12 Loans & Advances
Amount in i acs
Particulars As at 31st March 2022
Loans and Advances : (Unsecured, Considered Good)
-- to related parties -
-- to Employees 63.76
-- to Others 46.54
Total 110.30
13 Other Financial Assets

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

As at 31st March 2022

Advances Recoverable
Rent Receivable
Security Deposit :

728.41

(a) To Related Parties
(b) To Others -
Insurance Claim Receivable

Total 728.41

14

Other Current Assets

Amount in Lacs

Particulars As at 31st March 2022
Prepaid expenses 207.11
Other Advances -
Advance for Capital Goods -
Contract Assets (Advances to Suppliers) -
(a) To Related Parties 17.35
(b) To Others 687.34
Balances with Government Authorities -
(a) Advance Income Tax 142.50
(b) TDS Receivable 400.05
(¢) TCS Receivable 7 17.16
(d) GST Credit / 690.82
(e) Deposit with Revenue Authorities g'f ‘ N 43.81
Total o\ YALUURIA T 2,206.13

N2 /&)
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EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE

LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

15C Other Equity

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

As at 31st March 2022

(i) Share Capital Pending Allotment
Balance at the beginning of the period/year
Issue of Shares/ Share Application Money Received
Converted into Share Capital
Balance at the end of the period/year (A)

(ii) Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the period/year 7,863.31
Net Profit for the period/year 1,952.26
Transfers during the period/year (Net) -
Utilisation of Reserves (Bonus Issue) -
Unrealised Profit on Stocks -
Balance at the end of the period/year (B) 9,815.57
(iii) Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability (OCI)
Balance at the beginning of the period/year (8.98)
Movement during the period/year 16.73
Transfer from Retained Earnings
Balance at the end of the period/year (C) 7.75
Total (A+B+C) 9,823.32

Notes:

(i) Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has earned till date, less any transfers to any other reserves,

dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN - U74983UP1999PLC116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Fina

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

16

Non - Current Borrowings

ncial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED EPACK

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

As at 31st March 2022

Secured

U]

(i)

(iii)

Term Loans from banks (atb+c+d+e)
HDFC Bank Ltd
Less: Current Maturity of Long-term Debts (Refer Note 22)

Axis Bank
Less: Current Maturity of Long-term Debts (Refer Note 22)

IDFC First Bank
Less: Current Maturity of Long-term Debts (Refer Note 22)

Shinhan Bank
Less: Current Maturity of Long-term Debts (Refer Note 22)

Yes Bank
Less: Current Maturity of Long-term Debts (Refer Note 22)

Vehicle Loans (f+g)
Bank of Baroda Car Loan

Less: Current Maturity of Long-term Debts (Refer Note 22)

HDFC Bark Car Loan
Less: Current Maturity of Long-term Debts (Refer Note 22)

Term Loan from Financial Institutions (h)

Bajaj Finance Limited
Less: Current Maturity of Long-term Debts (Refer Note 22)

Unsecured

(iv)

(i)
0
(k)

Unsecured Loan from Related Parties (i+j+k)

Unsecured Loans from Directors
Unsecured Loans from Relatives of Directors
Loan from Corporates

Total (i+ii+iii+iv)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d}

(e)

(9)

(h}

3,758.71

1,779.37
471.12)

1,308.25

3,137.44
(814.71)

2,322,73

259,89
(132.17)

127.72

99.91

67.67
(23.07)

44.61

74.80
(19.49)

55,30

595.57

6.00
589.57

4,454.19




(A) The details of repayment terms,

rate of interest, and nature of securities provided in respect of secured term loans from banks are as below:

Amount in Lacs

Nature of Security

Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest

As at 31st March 2022

(i)

(iif)

Term loan includes loan obtained by Holding Company from HDFC Bank.

The above loan is secured by way of following:

t

INR 4773 Lacs is obtained which is repayable in line with

he repayment schedule of Bajaj Finance limited

Rate of Interest - 9.00% linked to 3 Month T-Bill — valid for
15 days. Reset will happen after 3 months
Penal Interest - 2% p,a

Second Pari Passu charge by way of Hypothecation on entire current
assets of the company (Both Present & Future)

INR 4300 Lacs is obtained which is repayable over the
First Pari Passu charge on entire Movable Fixed Assets of the company period of 80 equal monthly instalments after moratorium of
(Both Present & Future) 12 months for each tranche such that door to door tenor is
capped at 72 months

Rate of Interest - 9.00% linked to 3 Month T-Bill - valid for
15 days. Reset will happen after 3 months
Penal Interest - 2% p,a

First Pari passu charge on Land & Building of 61 B & C Udyag Vihar,
Greater Noida

INR 452 Lacs is obtained which is repayable over the
period of 36 equal monthly instalments after moratorium of

Ajay DD Singhania, Mr. Bajrang Bothra, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra

12 months
Rate of MCLR Foating Rate+ 1% (Spread 42661
W) Negative Lien on land & building of B-13, Sector Ecotech-1, Greater Noida, ___ga;esoc/’o ;2;:;?\;) . oating Ratet 1% (Spread)
UP201306. (*Land is in name of EPack Prefab Solutions Private Limited) Penal Interest - 2% p,a
First pari passu charge with Yes Bank only on land and building of Plot No. |INR 1000 Lacs is obtained which is repayable over the
) 5 and 6 Industrial Park Phase Il Andhra Pradesh period of 60 equal monthly instalments
602.77
‘ Elxcluslve charge on Plot no. 6 A and B Industrial Park Phase Il, Mambattu Rate of Interest - As per agreed Bank Rate
(vi) VillageAndhra Pradesh Penal Interest - 2% p.a
(vii) First Pari passu charge on Industrial property located at Plot No SP-128,
Industrial Area Ghiloth INR 1040 Lacs is obtained which is repayable over the
period of 5 years 20 equal quarterly instalments after
... Exclusive charge on Land and Building of B-14 Sector Eco Tech - |, moratorium period of & months
(vii) Greater Noida. This security is exclusively for Loan of INR 1040 Lacs. 750.00
Itis further secured by way of Personal Guarantee of the directors Mr.
(ix) Sanjay Singhania, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay DD Singhania and Mr.
Bajrang Bothra . Rate of interest - As per agreed Bank Rate
Penal interest - 2% p.
Extension of second ranking charge over existing primary and collateral enatinteres °pa
) securities including mortgages created in favour of HDEC Bank
INR 3500 Lacs is obtained which is repayable over the
Term loan includes loan obtained by Holding Company from YES Bank. period of 84 months after 12 months from the date of first
disbursement, -
The above loan is secured by way of following: Rate of Interest - EBLR + 1% p.a
Penal Interest - As applicable
- . INR 208 Lacs is obtained which is repayable over the
(0] ﬁz]c;;d eharge on Land & Building of 618 & C Udyog Vihar, Greater period of 48 months after 12 manths from the date of first
disbursement. 197.39
.+ Second Pari Passu charge by waly of Hypothecation on movable fixed Rate of Interest - EBLR + 1% p.a
(i) assets of the company (Both Present and Future) Penal Interest - As applicable
i) Second Pari Passu charge by way of Hypothecation on entire current
( assets of the company (Both Present & Future) . .
INR 1000 Lacs is obtained
(iv)) Exclusive charge on Current Assets financed through the additional WCTL
62.50
Rate of Interest - 9.25 p.a
(vy 'tis secured by way of Personal Gurantee of Mr. Sanjay Singhania and Mr.|Penal Interest - As applicable




(B

Term loan includes loan obtained by Holding Company from IDFC First Bank

The above loan is secured by way of following:

0]

First Pari Passu charge on Current Assets and Movable Fixed Assets of
the company.

(i) Itis further secured by way of Personal Gurantee of
and Mr. Ajay DD Singhania, Mr, Bajrang Bothra, Mr.

Mr. Sanjay Singhania
Laxmi Pat Bothra

INR 2500 Lacs is obtained which is to be repaid in 6
equated half yearly installments

Rate of Interest - EBLR (Repo Rate + 2.5% p.a) = 9.00%
p.a

Penal Interest - As applicable

Term loan includes toan obtained by Holding Company from Shinhan Bank .

The above loan is secured by way of following:

(i) Itis secured by way of personal Gurantee of Mr. Sanjay Singhania and
Mr. Ajay DD Singhania, Mr. Bajrang Bothra, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra

INR 1500.00 Lacs is obtained owhich is repayabie over the
period of 36 months (12 equal quarterly installments)

Rate of Interest - Repo rate i.e 6.50% plus spread i.e
2.10% =8.60% p.a

Penal interest - 2.00% p,a

Term loan includes loan obtained by Holding Company from AXIS Bank,

The above loan is secured by way of following:

I1IR 2400.00 Lacs is obtained which is repayable over the
period of 5 years including moratorium period of 8 months

(i) Itis secured against first Pari Passu charge on entire current assets of the 2,252.44
company (present and Future),
(i)  Further secured against Second Pari passu charge on entire movahble Rate of Interest - As per applicable Bank Rate
fixed assets of the company (Present and Future) Penal Interest - As applicable
(iii) Second Pari passu charge leasehold land and Building located at 61B-C
Udhyog Vihar Greater Noida.
(iv) Second Pari passu charge over Leasehold Land and Building located at INR 1000.00 Lacs is obtained which is repayable over the
SP5-128 Ghiloth Industrial Area period of § years including moratorium period of 12 months
(v)  Negative Lein over land and building located at B-13 Sector 1 Eco tech 905.00
Greater Noida (owned by Epack Prefab Solutions Pwt Ltd.
(Vi) Itis further secured by way of Personal Guarantee of the directors Mr, Rate of Interest - As per applicable Bank Rate
Sapjay Singhania, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay DD Singhania and Mr. Penal Interest - As aﬁplica’iﬁe
| Bajrang Bothra

The details of repayment terms, rate of interest, and nature of securities prov

ided in respect of vehicle loans from banks are as below:

Amount in Lacs

Nature of Security

Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest

As at 31st March 2022

Vehicle loan includes loan obtained by Holding Company from HDFC Bank.

INR 235.03 Lacs vehicle loan obtained and repayable in 39
monthly equal instaliments

74.80
Vehicle Loan is secured by way of Hypothecation of respective Vehicle Rate of Interest - As per applicable Bank Rate
Vehicle loan includes ioan obtained by Holding Company from Bank of Baroda.  (INR 67.68 Lacs vehicie loan was obtained repayable in 36
monthly equal installments
67.67

Vehicle Loan is secured by way of Hypothecation of respective Vehicle

Rate of Interest - As per applicable Bank Rate (7.10% p.a)




(c

D)

The details of repayment terms, rate of interest, and nature of securities provided in respect of loans from financial institutions are as below:

Amount in Lacs

Nature of Security

Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest

As at 31st March 2022

Loan from Financial Institution includes loan obtained by Holding company from
Bajaj Finance limited

The above loan is secured by way of following:
M

(i) Second Pari Passu charge on current assets.

INR 5200 Lacs loan was obtained which is repayable over
the period of 72 months after a moratorium of 12 months
from the date of first draw-down

First Pari Passu charge on entire Movable and immovable Fixed Assets of [Floating Interest Rate (i.e Sum of Benchmark Reference
the company. Rate +Spread ) (As applicable)

.. Itis further secured by way of Personal Gurantee of Mr. Sanjay Singhania {Penal Interest Rate - 2.00% p.a over and above the
(i and Mr. Ajay DD Singhania, Mr, Bajrang Bothra, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra applicable Interest Rate

The details of repayment terms, rate of interest, and nature of securities provided in respect of loans from related parties are as helow:

Amount in Lacs

Nature of Security

Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest

As at 31st March 2022

Loan from Related Parties includes [oan ohtained by Holding Company from Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate 124.78
Drishika Singhania

Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Company from Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate 22478
Avishi Singhania

Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Company from Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate °
Madhu Agrawal

Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Company from Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate 6.00
Sanjay Singhania

Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Company from Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate 48.21
Anishka Singhania

Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Company from Anju |Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate 79.48
Singhania

Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Company from Amit |Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate 7112
Singhania

Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Company from Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate 40.24

Divisha Singhania




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB
TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended

31st March 2022
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

17 Non - Current Lease Liabilities

Amount in Lacs

. As at 31st March
Particulars 2022
Lease Liability 377.87
Less : Current Maturities of Lease Liability (Refer Note 23} (38.96)
Total 338.91

18 Other Non - Current Financial Liablities

Amount in Lacs

As at 31st March

Particulars 2022
Security Deposit for Service Contractors 526.45
Total 526.45

19 Long Term Provisions

Amountin Lacs

As at 31st March

Particulars 2022
Provision for Retirement Benefits (Refer Note 40) 164.30
Less: Current Maturity of Defined Benefits Liability -
Total - 164.30

20 Deferred Tax Liabilities

Amount in Lacs

. As at 31st March
Particulars 2022
Deferred Tax Liabilities 547.38
At the end of the period/year 547.38

21 Other Non - Current Liabilities

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

As at 31st March
2022

Trade/Security Deposits received

Total
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EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED EPACK
POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74993UP1999PLGC116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

22  Current Borrowings
Amount in Lacs

Particulars As at 31st March 2022

Secured

(i) Cash Credit 1,062.24
(i)  Commercial card Limit 99.95

(i) Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings 1,460.55

Unsecured

() From Related Party 187.77
i) _From Others -

Total 2,810.51

(A) The details of repayment terms, rate of interest, and nature of securities provided in respect of working capital loans from banks are as below:

Amount in Lacs

Nature of Security Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest As at 31st March 2022

Cash Credit includes credit facility obtained by Holding Company
from HDFC Bank .

The above credit facility is secured by way of following:
(i) Itis secured againstFirst PariPassu charge by way of INR.5400 L_akhs (Fund based & Non fund based) working capital
hypothecation on the entire current assets of the company, both [facility obtained.
present and future
(i) Second Pari Passu charge on entire movable fixed assets of the
company, both present and future

(iify First Pari passu charge on Land & Building of 61 B & C Udyog
) : 318.04
Vihar, Greater Noida.

T re re ble on demand.
(iv) First Pari-passu charge on Industrial property located at Plot No hese are repayable eman

SP-128, Industrial Area Ghiloth

(v) Negative Lein over land and building located at B-13 Sector 1

Eco tech Greater Noida (owned by Epack Prefab Solutions Pyt
I td

(vi} ltis further secured by way of Personal Guarantee of the Rate of Interest - As per applicable Bank rate
directors Mr. Sanjay Singhania, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay
DD Singhania and Mr. Bajrang Bothra .

Cash Credit includes credit facility obtained by Holding Company
from Yes Bank .

The above credit facility is secured by way of following:

(i) Iltis secured against first Pari Passu charge on by way of INR 5900 Lakhs (Fund based & Non fund based) working capital
hypothecation on all current assets of the company (Both facility obtained.
Present and Future).

(i) Further secured against Second Pari passu charge by way of
hypothecation on entire movable fixed assets of the company

499.84
(Both Present and Future)

(iii) Second Pari passu charge ny way of mortgage immovable
property located at 61B-C Udhyog Vihar Greater Noida, These are repayable on demand.

(iv) Negative Lein over land and building focated at B-13 Sector 1

Eco tech Greater Noida (owned by Epack Prefab Solutions Pvt Rate of Interest (for Cash Credit) - MCLR + 0.15% p.a

R} .
() Itis further secured by way of Personal Guarantee of the Rate of Interest (For Non fund based) - As per applicable Bank
directors Mr. Sanjay Singhania, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay (rate
DD Singhania and Mr. Bajrang Bothra .
Cash Credit includes credit facility obtained by Holding Company
from Indusind Bank .
The above credit facility is secured by way of following: ) )
(i) Itis secured against first Pari Passuy charge on entire current INR_GOOO L}akhs (Fund based & Non fund based) working capital
assets of the company (present and Future). facility obtained.

(if) Further secured against Second Pari passu charge on entire
movable fixed assets of the company

Second Pari passu charge (equitable mortgage) on leasehold -
'-ﬁ“iifj,ggd and Building located at 61B-C Udhyog Vihar Greater Noida. -

T
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(iv) Second Pari passu charge over immovable fixed assets located
at SP5-128 Ghiloth Industrial Area

(v) Negative Lein over land and building located at B-13 Sector 1
Eco tech Greater Noida (owned by Epack Prefab Solutions Pvt

LA

(vi) Itis further secured by way of Personal Guarantee of the
directors Mr. Sanjay Singhania, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay
DD Singhania and Mr. Bajrang Bothra .

THIWOA B LSy B W ST

Rate of Interest - As per applicable Bank rate

Cash Credit includes credit facility obtained by Holding
Company from Axis Bank .

The above credit facility is secured by way of following:

(i) Itis secured against first Pari Passu charge on entire current
assets of the company (present and Future).

(i) Further secured against Second Pari passu charge on entire
movable fixed assets of the company (Present and Future)

(iii) Second Pari passu charge leasehold land and Building located
at 61B-C Udhyog Vihar Greater Noida.

(iv) Second Pari passu charge over Leasehold Land and Building
located at SP5-128 Ghiloth Industrial Area

(v) Negative Lein over land and building located at B-13 Sector 1
Eco tech Greater Noida (owned by Epack Prefab Solutions Pvt
Ltd.

(vi) Itis further secured by way of Personal Guarantee of the
directors Mr. Sanjay Singhania, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay
DD Singhania and Mr. Bajrang Bothra .

INR 4500 Lakhs (Fund based & Non fund based) working capital

facility obtained.

These are repayable on demand.

Rate of Interest - As per applicable Bank rate

244 .36

Cash Credit includes credit facility obtained by Holding Company
from IDFC First Bank :

|
The above credit facility is secured by way of following:

(i) Itis secured against first Pari Passu charge on current assets of
the company (Both Present and Future).

(i) Further secured against Second Pari passu charge on movable
fixed assets of the company

(iii) Second Pari passu charge Leasehold and and Building located
at 61B-C Udhyog Vihar Greater Noida.

(iv) Negative Lein on immovable property located at B-13 Sector 1
Eco tech Greater Noida (owned by Epack Prefab Solutions Pvt

(v) Itis further secured by way of Personal Guarantee of the
directors Mr. Sanjay Singhania, Mr, Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay
DD Singhania and Mr. Bajrang Bothra .

NR 5000 Lakhs (Fund based & Non fund based) working capital

facility obtained.

These are repayable on demand.

Rate of Interest - As per applicable Bank rate

Cash Credit includes credit facility obtained by Holding Company

from Citi Bank :

The above credit facility is secured by way of following: ;

(i) tis secured against first Pari Passu charge on current assets
(Stock and Book debts) of the company.

(i) Further secured against Second Pari passu charge on entire
movabie fixed assets of the company

(iif) Second Pari passu charge Leasehold and and Building located
at 61B-C Udhyog Vihar Greater Noida.

(iv) Second Pari passu charge over Leasehold Land and Buidling
located at Plot No.SP5-128 Ghiloth Industrial Area

(v) Negative Lein on immovable property located at B-13 Sector 1

(vi) Itis further secured by way of Personal Guarantee of the
directors Mr. Sanjay Singhania, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay
DD Singhania

NR 4500 Lakhs (Fund based & Non fund based) working capital
acility obtained.

These are repayable on demand.

Eco tech Greater Noida (owned by Epack Prefab Solutions Pvt Rate of Interest - As per applicable Bank rate




(B) The details of rate of interest and nature of securities provided in respect of Commercial Credit Card from banks are as below:

Amount in Lacs

Nature of Security

Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest

As at 31st March 2022

HDFC Comercial Credit Card

The HDFC Commercial Credit Card limit without Interest . These
are repayable on demand

98.95

Axis Comercial Credit Card

The Axis Commercial Credit Card limit without Interest .These are
repayable on demand

(C) The details of repayment terms, rate of interest, and nature of securities provided in respect of loans from related parties are as b

elow:

Amount in Lacs

Nature of Security

Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest

As at 31st March 2022

Company from Ajay Singhania

on demand

Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Rate of interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate Repayable 466
Company from Sanjay Singhania on demand :
Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate Repayabie 72.44
Company from Pinky Singhania on demand ’
Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate Repayable

Company from Avishi Singhania on demand )
Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate Repayable

Company from Amit Singhania on demand N
Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate Repayable 85.52
Company from Preeti Singhania on demand ’
Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate Repayable 25.15

T
s




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE
LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

23  Current Lease Liability
Amount in Lacs

. As at 31st March
Particulars 2022
Lease liabilty 38.96
Total 38.96
24 Trade Payables
Amount in Lacs
Particulars As at 31st March
2022
(A) Total Outstanding dues of micro -
enterprises and small enterprises
For Goods -
For Services / Other expenses -
(B) Total OQutstanding dues of creditors 8,158.82
other than micro enterprises and small
()  Payable for Goods
Due to Related Parties 4.05
Due to Others 8,1564.77
(i) Payable for Expenses
Due to Related Parties -
Due to Others -
Total 8,158.82

24.1 Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

As at 31st March 2022
Amount in Lacs

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 1 1- 2 Years 23 years More than 3 Total
year years
0} MSME N - N C -
(ii) Others 8,037.76 56.63 41.13 23.32 8,158.82
(i) Disputed dues MSh - - - - -
(iv)  Disputed dues Othe - - - . .




24.2 Disclosure as required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

As at 31st March
2022

(i)  Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at period/year end
(i) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at period/year end on above
(iif) Principél amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the

(iv) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond
(v} Interest baid,'uhder'séctioﬂn 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the

(vi) Interest due and péyable towards suppliers registered under MSME

(vii)  Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

D Act, for payments already made

25 Current Financial Liabilities

26

27

28

Amount in Lacs

As at 31st March

Particulars 2022
Interest accrued but not due 0.28
Payable for Fixed Assets 1,186.19
Expenses Payable -
- To Related Parties 14.79
- To Others 254.75
Security Deposit -
Total 1,456.01

Short Term Provisions

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

As at 31st March
2022

Provision for employee henefits
Gratuity & Leave Encashment (Refer Note 40)

Provision others
Provisions for Expenses
Provisions for CSR

140.62
7.41

Total

148.02

Liability for Current Tax

Amount in Lacs

As at 31st March

Particulars 2022
Provision for Income Tax 368.27
Total 368.27

Other Current Liabilities

Amount in Lacs

As at 31st March

Particulars 2022
Statutory Payable -
TDS Payable 66.57
TCS Payable 0.19
GST Payable 167.72
ESI Payable 0.52
Provident Fund Payable 13.39
Professional Tax Payable

NPS Payable -
Other Liabilties -
Contact Liabilities (Advances from Trade Receivables) : -

- To Related Parties -

- To Others 1,039.14
Reimbursement of Expenses -
Other Payables 56.03

Total

1,343.56




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY

LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Finan
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

29

29.1

(@

(b)

30

KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE

cial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022

Revenue from Operations
Amount in Lacs
Particulars Year ended 31st March
2022
Sale of Products 44 121.88
Sale of Services
Other Operating Income 888.67
Total 45,010.56
Disaggregated Revenue Information
Type of Goods/ Services
Amount in Lacs
Particulars Year ended 31st March
2022
Revenue from Pre-Fabricated (Pre-Engineered) Building Contracts 25,625.77
Sale of Building Materials 4,217.85
Revenue from Sale of goods (EPS Division) 14,278.26
Other Operating Income 888.67
Total 45,010.56

Geographical Information

Amount in Lacs

Year ended 31st March

Particuiars 2022

Sale of Products and Services Comprises of:

Domestic Sales 44,803.10
Export Sales 207.45
Total 45,010.56

Other Income

Amountin Lacs

Particulars

Year ended 31st March
2022

Interest Income

Gain on foreign currency transaction
Electricity Refund

Profit on Sale of Land Rights

Profit on Sale of Asset

Expected Credit Loss Allowance Reversal
Gain_Loss Investment Shares

Laibilities Written Back

EPF Under PMRPY

Gain on loss of significant Influence
Excess Provision of Income Tax Expense W/back
Fair Value Gain of Mutual Funds

Rent Income

36.12
15.67
167.79

60.35
30.89

Total 5=

310.82




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE

LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

31 Cost of Materials Consumed

Amount in Lacs

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2022

Opening Stock 1,221.59
Purchases 31,401.34
Job Work Charges 472.48
Direct Expenses (Service Charges) 2,296.97
Total 35,392.39
Less : Closing Stock (3,586.14)
Total 31,806.25

32 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Amountin Lacs

Particulars

Year ended 31st March
2022

Purchase of traded goods

Total

33 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress

Amountin Lacs

Particulars

Year ended 31st March
2022

Closing inventories

Finished goods 619.25
Work in Process 941.75
Stock-in-trade -
1,561.00

Opening inventories
Finished goods 243.41
Work in Process 630.16
Stock-in-trade -
873.57
Total {687.43)

34 Employee Benefits Expense

Amount in Lacs

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2022

Salaries and wages, Bonus and other allowances 2,714.96
Contribution to provident funds, Family Pension and ESIC 204.95
Gratuity & Leave Encashment Expense (Refer Note 40) 42.69
Workmen and Staff welfare expenses 63.38
Medical Reimbursement expense -
Total o) 3,025.98




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FOR

LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PL.C116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise

35 Finance Costs

stated

MERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE

Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022

Amount in Lacs

Particulars Year ended 31st March
2022

Interest and other borrowing cost on Borrowings from banks 379.43
Bank Charges 63.39
Interest expense - others 46.68
Hire charges 4.46
LC Discoutning charges 33.71
Interest on lease liability 16.58
Processing charges Loan 7.21
Total 551.47

36  Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

Year ended 31st March

2022

Depreciation on Investment Property
Amortization on Intangible assets
Amortization on Right of Use Assets

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

643.29

16.55
42.87

Total

702.71




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIM

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Staterent for the year ended 31st March 2022

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

37

371

Other Expenses

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE
ITED)

Amountin Lacs

Particulars Year ended 31st March
2022

Consumption of Packing Material 284.87
Consumption of Stores & Spares 1,426.54
Power & Fuel Expenses 2,693.15
Rent Paid 236.90
Repair & Maintenance - Building 124.02
Repair & Maintenance - Plant & Machinery 133.00
Repair & Maintenance - Others 1.72
Rates & Taxes (0.25)
Insurance 77.35
Foreign Exchange fluctuation -
Freight & Cartage 1,185.27
Service Charges -
Legal Charges 0.04
Audit Fees - Statutory Audit 6.31
Legal and Professional Fees 11.47
Corporate Social responsibility Expenses 27.50
Travelling & Conveyance 133.25
Bad Debts 225.02
lLoss of Fixed Asset by Fire -
Loss of Stock by Fire -
Interest on Statutory Payments 90.89
GST Penalty 1.84
Loss on Sale of Asset 0.62
Rejection & Breakage 17.00
Consultancy Charges 68.58
Lease Rent -
Account Charges 0.03
Expected Credit Loss 139.83
Interest on delay payment to MSME

Miscellaneous Expenses 426.83
Total 7,311.79

Payment to Auditor comprises of

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

Year ended 31st March
2022

Auditors' remuneration and expenses:

For Audit Fees : 6.31
For Other Services -
Total 6.31

* Other services expenses is included in Legal & Professional Fees




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FOR

LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolid

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

38

Income Tax Expense
Tax expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

(i) Current Tax

MERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE

ated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022

Amount in Lacs

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2022
Current Tax on Taxable Income for the period/ year 637.57
Total Current Tax Expense 637.57

(i) Deferred Tax

Amountin Lacs

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2022

Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit) 20.58
MAT Credit (Taken)/Utilised -
Total Deferred Income Tax Expense/(Benefit) 20.58

(iii) Taxes in Respect of Earlier Years

Amount in Lacs

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2022
Taxes in respect of earlier years 0.20
Total taxes in respect of earlier years 0.20

Tax expense recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

Amount in Lacs

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2022

Deferred Tax expense on remeasurement of defined benefit plans (5.63)
through OCI -
Income Tax Expe (5.63)

nse charged to OCI
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EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE
LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

38.1 Areconciliation of the income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate

39

to the profit before income taxes is summarized below:

Amountin Lacs

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2022

Restated Profit before tax 2,610.61
Income Tax Expenses Calculated at 25.168% 657.04
Effect of Income that is exempt from Tax (42.23)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 13.77
Effect of conssession (allowance) -
Effect of Income taxed at Lower Rate of Tax -
Effect of unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation on which deferred tax assets -
Effect of Ind AS adjustments 24.15
Effect of Consolidation Adjustments -
Adjustments recognised in current year in relation to the current tax of prior years 0.20
Others 5.42
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 658.35|

Earnings Per Share

Particulars

Year ended 31st March
2022

(a) Basic earnings per share (%)
From continuing operations ()
From discontinued operations (%)
Total Basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of the Holding

(b)  Diluted earnings per share (%)
From continuing operations (%)
From discontinued operations ()
Total Diluted earnings per share attributable to the owners of the Holding

Footnotes:
The earnings and weighted average numbers of equity shares used in the calculation of
(a) Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share:
Profit for the year from continuing operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations

(b) Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic
Ajustments for calculation of Diluted earnings per Share
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share

(c) Face value of equity share (Z/share)

2.52

2.52

2.52

2.52

1,952.26

7,75,08,000.00

7,75,08,000.00

2.00

Note:

The basic and diluted earning per share for the current period and previous periods presented have been calculated
Irestated aﬁf;g@ﬁﬁiﬂgrjgg the share split and bonus issue in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 33. (Refer Note -
e 5

17A)




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PL.C116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

40

(A)

8

Details of Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

The Group has defined contribution plan in form of Provident Fund, Pension Scheme and Employee State Insurance Scheme for qualifying employees.
Under the Schemes, the Group is required to contribute a specified rates to fund the schemes

Amount in Lacs

Particulars Year ended 31st

. March 2022
Provident Fund 28.97
Employee State Insurance Scheme 175.98
Total 204.95

Defined Benefit Plans

For defined benefits in the form of Gratuity the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial Gains and Losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period which they
oceur.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Shest represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognized past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus
the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the schemes.

(1) Post Employment Benefit

Salary for calculation of Gratuity Last drawn qualifying monthly salary as provided by the enterprise
Vesting Period 5 years of continuous service (Not applicable in case of death/disability)
Benefit on Normal retirement (15/26) x salary x number of years of completed service

Benefit on Early retirement Same as normal retirement benefit

Beneifit on death in service Same as normal retirement benefit except that no vesting conditions apply
Limit on amount of gratuity Maximum Gratuity is restricted to INR 20,00,000/-

The benefits are governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 or Group scheme rules, whichever is higher.

Aforesaid post-employment benefit plans typically expose the Group to risks such as: actuarial risk, investment risk, liquidity risk, market ri

(iy Acturial Risk
Itis the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
Adverse Salary Growth Experience
Variability in mortality rates
Variability in withdrawal rates

(ii) Investment Risk
For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments
backing the liability. In such cases,the present value of the aseets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in
the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

(ifi) Liquidity Risk
Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits.If some of such employees
resign/retire from the Group there can be strain on the cashflows.

(iv) Market Risk
Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets.One actuarial assumption that has a
material effect is the discount rate.




(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(v) Legislative Rsik

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation, The government
may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act or Shop and Establishment Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees.

There are no changes in the benefit scheme since the last valuation. There are no special events such as benefit improvements or curtailments or

settlements during the inter-valuation period.

The following tables summarise the components of defined benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income

and the funded status and amounts recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet for the respective plans:

Reconciliations

Movements in the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligations

Amount in Lacs

Year ended 31st

Particulars March 2022

Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning 165.96
Current Service Cost 34.66
Interest Expense 10.62
Remeasurements - Actuarial (gains) / losses (21.97)
Benefits paid by the Group (17.18)
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end 172.09

Movements in the fair value of the Plan Assets

Amount in Lacs

Year ended 31st

Particulars March 2022
Opening fair value of plan assets 40.55
Interest Income 2.60
Remeasurements - Actuarial gains / (losses) 0.39
Contirbutions from Employer -
Benefits paid

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the period 43.54

Service Cost

Amount in Lacs

Year ended 31st

icul
Particulars March 2022
Current Service Cost 34.66
Past Service Cost including curtailment gains/iosses
Gains or Losses on non routine settlements
Total 34.66

Net Interest Cost (Income)

Amountin Lacs

Year ended 31st

Particulars March 2022

Interest Cost on Defined Benefit Obligation 10.62
Interest Income on Plan Assets 2.60
Net Interest Cost (Income) 8.03

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) in other comprehensive income:

Amount in Lacs

Year ended 31st

Other (describe)
Adjustments for restrictions on the defined benefit asset

Particulars March 2022
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (0.39)
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions -
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (3.52)
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience adjustments (18.45)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income

(22.36)




f

()]

(h)

The amounts to be recognized in the statement of Profit & l.oss

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

Year ended 31st

March 2022
Service Cost 34.66
Net Interest Cost / (income) 8.03
Defined Benefit Cost recognized in statement of Profit or Loss 42.69

The amount included in the Balance Sheet

Amount in Lacs

Year ended 31st

Particulars March 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation 172.09
Fair value of plan assets 43.54
Funded status (128.56)
Restrictions on asset recognised -
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 128.56

lilustration of the components of Net Defined Benefit Obligation

Amount in Lacs

Year ended 31st

Particulars March 2022

Net defined benefit liability at the start of the period 165.96
Service Cost 34.66
Net Interest Cost (Income 8.03
Remeasurements (22.36)
Contribution paid to the Fund

Benefits paid directly by the enterprise (17.18)
Net defined benefit liability at the end of the period 128.56

Plan Assets - Category wise description

Particulars

Year ended 31st
March 2022

GOI SECURITIES

PSU BONDS

STATE/CENTRAL GUARANTEED

SPECIAL DEPOSITS

PVT. SECTOR

ASSET INVESTED IN INSURANCE SCHEME WITH THE INSURER

The assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost are set out below:

Year ended 31st

Particulars March 2022
Discount Rate T 6.80% p.a
Salary Escalation % [N 5.00% p.a.

Witndrawal Rates /7%

All Ages -15% p.a




Amount, timing and uncertainty of future cash flows

Sensitivity Analysis

Gratuity

Amount in Lacs

X Year ended 31st

Particulars March 2022
Discount Rate Sensitivity
(a) Defined benefit obligation 172.09
(b) Defined benefit obligation at 1% Increase in Discount rate 163.87
(c) Defined benefit obligation at 1% Decrease in Discount rate 181.16
(d) Decrease in Defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase in discount rate. (a-b) 8.22
(e) Increase in Defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in discount rate, (c-a) 9.06
Salary growth rate Sensitivity
(2) Defined benefit obligation 172.09
(b) Defined benefit obligation at 1% Increase in Expected Salary Escalation rate 181.23
(c) Defined benefit obligation at 1% Decrease in Expected Salary Escalation rate 163.66
(d) Decrease in Defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase in Expected Salary Escalation rate. (b-a) 9.13
(e) Increase in Defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in Expected Salary Escalation rate. (a-c) 8.43

The Effect of the Plan on the Group’s Future Cash Flows

(i) The Description on funding arrangements and funding policy
The defined benefit obligation (Gratuity) is funded through Life insurance Corporation of India.

(iii) The Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

Gratuity

Amount in Lacs

. Year ended 31st

Particulars March 2022
The Weighted Average Duration (Years) as at valuation date 8 Years
Year 1 Cashflow 26.37
Year 2 Cashflow 22.14
Year 3 Cashflow 23.33
Year 4 Cashflow 22.26
Year 5 Cashflow 22.44

Year 6 to 10 Cashflow

142.17




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PL.C116066
Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

41

(A)

B8)

©
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Leases

The Group has recognised a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, and right-of-use (ROU) asset at an amount
equal to lease liability (adjusted for any related prepayments). The Group has taken lease hold land on lease. Management has exercised judgement in
determining whether extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised. The Group has used discounting rate of 6% to arrive at the
present value of its future cash flows towards lease liabilities.

Lease Liabilities - Maturity Analysis
Amount in Lacs

Particulars » As at 31st March 2022
Less than 1 year 38.96
1-5years 216.98
More than 5 years 121.93
Total 377.87

Movement of Lease Liabilities
Amount in Lacs

Particulars As at 31st March 2022
Opening Balance 145,66
Addition . 237.51
Interest on Lease Liability 16.58
Payment towards Lease Liability (21.88)
Total 377.87

Rental Expenses recorded for Long Term Leases are as follows:
Amount in Lacs

Particulars Year ended 31st

) March 2022
Depreciation Expense of Right-of-Use Assets (Refer Note 36) 42.87
Interest Expense on Lease Liability (Refer Note 35) 16.58
Total 59.46

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Amount in Lacs

Particulars As at 31st March 2022

(A) Contingent Liabilities

(i) Inrespect of Bank Guarantees & LC's issued by Banks on behalf of the Group 5,884.80
(i) Inrespect of Income Tax Liability that may arise for which the Group is in Appeal 53.71
(i) Inrespect of Sales Tax/VAT/GST 9.05

(v) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt -

)
(iv) Inrespect of Corporate Guarantees -
i) Inrespect of Others -

(v

(B) Commitments
(i) Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) -

(i) Other Commitments -

Note:

.Il IS HUL pravucasne oy € Gruup W eswimae uig UrHmys Ui casi| LuLtows, n dlly, i TESPRCL Ul Lie guuve MEHUINY 12SUIIUUN Ul LI tespeciive

(i) proceedings. Future cash outflows in respect of the above are determinable only on receipt of judgments / decisions pending with various forums/
antharitiee

ed at on the basis of\available information.
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(iif) The Group does not expect any outflow of €conomic resources in respect of the above and therefore no provision is made in respect thereof.
Details of Disputed Liability that may arise for which the Group is in Appeal:

As at 31st March 2022
Amount in Lacs

Name of Statute Nature of Dues Amount Period to which the Forun'1 where- dispute
amount relates is pending
Appeal to the
1 Income Tax Act 1961 Income Tax 53.71 2016-17 Commissioner of
Income-tax (Appeals)
2 Goods & Services Tax 2017 Penalty 9.05 March 2022 Appeal not yet filed

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
As per provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies Amendment Act, 2019, the Group has to spend at least 2% of the

average profits of the preceding three financial years towards CSR. Accordingly, a CSR committee has been formed for carrying out the CSR activities as
per Schedule Vi of the Companies Act, 2013.

Amount in Lacs

Particulars Year ended 31st

March 2022
Amount required to be spent by the Group during the year/period 27.50
Actual expenditure related to CSR spent during the year/period 77.50
Shortfall in spending related to CSR activities during the year/period (50.00)
Total of previous years shortfall. 57.41
Note:

() The Group's CSR Activities primarily involve promoting Education and Health care..
(i) For the period ended September 30 2024, excess/short spent to be determined at the end of the financial year.
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44 Related Party Disclosures

(A) The list of related parties as identified by the Management is as under;

Nature of Relationship

Name of Related Party

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Sanjay Singhania (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ajay Singhania (Non Executive Director)

Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra

Mr. Bajrang Bothra (Chairman and Non Executive Director)

Mr. Devki Nandan Pareek

Mr. Pradeep Pradhan

Mr. Rahui Agarwal (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Nikhel Bothra (Whole Time Director)

Mrs. Nikita Singh (Company Secretary and Compliance Officer)

Directors / Independent Directors

Mr. Rajeev Jain (Independent Director)

Mr. D C Jain (Independent Director)

Ms. Mehak Jain (Woman Independent Director)
Mr. Manuj Aggarwal (Independent Director)

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel

Mrs. Preity Singhania

Mr. Sajjan kumar Prithany
Mrs. Pushpa Devi Prithany
Mr. Pawan Prithany

Mr. Deepak Prithany

Ms. Arshia Singhania

Ms. Araanya Singhania
Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agarwala
Mrs. Radha Prasad Agarwala
Mr. Robin Agarwala

Mr. Ronnakk Agarwala
Mrs. Kanta Bothra

Mrs. Sneh Lodha

Mrs. Shashi Charoria

Mr. Rajjat Kumar Bothra
Mrs. Pinky Singhania
Mrs. Hridya Chordia

Mr. Jeet Mal Banthia

Mrs. Jatan Devi Banthia
Mr. Parasmal Banthia

Mr. Hastimal Banthia

Mr. Dineshmal Banthia
Mr. Nitin Bothra

Mrs. Leela Devi Bothra
Mr. Pramod Dugar

Mrs. Prasanna Dugar
Mrs. Suman Bothra

Mr. Deen Dayal Singhania
Mr. Amit Singhania

Ms. Divisha Singhania
Mrs. Anju Singhania

Ms. Anishka Singhania
Ms. Drishika Singhania
Ms. Avishi Singhania

Mrs. Madhu Agarwai

Mrs. Nisha Agarwal

Mr. Reyansh Agarwal

Ms. Harshi Agarwal

Mr. Ravi Agarwal

Mr. Kamal Agarwal

Mrs. Lalita Devi Agarwal
Mrs. Meena Singh

Mr. Rohit Kumar

Ms. Aarohi Singh

Mr. Siddhartha Singh

Ms. Soni Singh

Ms. Aditi Singh




Ennov Techno Tools Private Limited
Epack Durable Limited (Formerly known as
Epack Durable Solutions Private Limited)
East India Technologies Private Limited
East India Auto Traders Private Limited
Rizz Technologies Private Limited

Epavo Electricals Private Limited

Gold Touch Jewellery Private Limited
Rajshree Jewellers Private Limited
Indian Gem & Jewellery Imperial Private Limited
Oneiro Trading Private Limited

Dugar Tours & Travels Private Limited
Netscope Dealcomm Private Limited
Dugar Gem & Jewellery Private Limited
Sun Gold Creation Private Limited

Star Gold Jewellery Private Limited
Punam Gem & Jewellery Private Limited
Dugar Gems Private Limited

Dugar Diamond Trading Private Limited

Enterprise under Control or Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel / Relatives |Indian Gem & Jewellery Creation Private Limited
of Key Managerial Person have Significant Influence

Jiwanmalt Parasmall(Partnership Firm)
Gajendra and Mahendra (Partnership)

Giyansh International (Partnership)

Imperial Spaces (partnership firm)

Rukmani Spaces (partnership firm)

Rameswar Tea & Association (partnership firm)
Green Gold Tea Industries (partnership firm)
Shivangan Estates (partnership firm)

Pulibor Tea Private Limited

Worthy Tea Company Private Limited

Jeetjatan Services Private Limited

Extreme Thematic Design Company {Partnership)
Decent Softtech Private Limited

Mool Chand Eatables Private Limited

Epack Prefabricated Limited

Ennov Infra Solutions Private Limited

Bothra Manufacturing Company Private Limited
Krish Packaging Private Limited

Madhav Building Solutions Private Limited
Green Vision Infratech Private Limited

Epack Component Private Limited (Formerly Known as E-Durables)

Sricity Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited

Ewaa Renewable Techno Solutions Private Limited

Subsidiary and Associate Company

Epack Prefab Solutions Private Limited ( Formerly Known as Epack

Epack Petrochem Solutions Private Limited (Formerly Known as E-
Durables Electronics Pvt, Ltd.) (Subsidiary till 16th January 2023 , then it

(B} Transactions and Balances as at and for the six months period ended 30th Sep.tember 2024 and years ended 31st March 2024, 31st March 2023 and 31st

() Details of transactions with related parties (in accordance with Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures)

Amount in Lacs

Name of Related Party Nature of Transaction Year ended 31st
March 2022
a) Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel and Directors *:
Salary 87.12
TDS deducted on Salary 27.07
Advance Given -
Reimbursement of Expenses -
(i) Mr. Sanjay Singhania Loan Received 37.80
Loan repaid 33.20
Interest paid -
TDS deducted 0.05
Interest Credited 0.54
Salary 6.00
TDS deducted 0.24
Loan Received 25.00
(i) Mr. Ajay Singhania Loan repaid -
Interest paid -
Interest Credited 1.31
TDS deducted 0.13




Salary

TDS deducted on Salary
(i) Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra Rent Paid

i Security Refund

TDS deducted on Rent Paid

Salary
Mr. Bajrang L. Bothra TDS deducted

(iv

Rent Paid

TDS deducted
Security Refund
Loan Received
Loan Repaid
Interest Credited
Interest paid
TDS deducted

(v) Mrs. Preeti Singhania

Loan taken
Commision Paid
TDS deducted
Loan Repaid

(vi) Mr. Deendayal Singhania

Rent Paid

TDS deducted

Loan Received

Expenses paid to be Reimbursed
Reimbursed the expenses made
Security Refund

Loan Repaid

Interest paid

Interest Credited

TDS deducted

(vii

Mrs. Pinky Singhania

Consuitancy expenses
TDS deducted
o Salary
iy Mr. Nikhil Bothrs
(viily Mr. Nikhil Bothra Advance Given
Loan received back
Expenses paid to be Reimbursed

Loan Received
Loan Repaid
(ix) Mr. Amit Singhania Interest Paid
Interest Credited
TDS deducted

Salary paid
Loan Repaid
Interest Paid
Interest Credited
Consuitancy
TDS deducted

(%) Ms. Divisha Singhania

Loan Received

Loan Repaid

Interest Credited

(%) Ms. Drishika Singhania Consultancy Charges

TDS deducted on consultancy charges
Interest Paid

TDS deducted

Loan Received
Loan Repaid
Interest Credited
Interest Paid
TDS deducted
Consultancy

(xll) Ms. Avishi Singhania

Rent Paid
(Xl Mrs. Leela Devi Bothra Security Refund
TDS deducted

Consultancy Fees

(xiv) Mrs. Suman Bothra TDS deducted

Loan Received
% gz?g w\x Loan Repaid
TS % |Interest Paid
R Interest Credited
TDS Deducted

(xv) Mrs. Anju Singhania

AT
1 VADOD




Loan Received 100.00
Loan Repaid 50.00
. X . . Interest Paid 275
(xvi) Ms. Anishka Singhania Interest Credited B
TDS Deducted 0.22
Salary, Leave, Bonus, etc 15.72
. . Advance against Salary -
(xvii) Mr Devki Nandan Pareek Advances Recoverable i
TDS deducted 1.96
Salary, Leave, Bonus, etc 11.01
(xviii) Mr Pradeep Pradhan TDS deducted 0.56
Loan Received -
Loan Repaid -
. Interest Paid -
(xix) Mrs. Madhu Agarwal Interest Credited R
TDS deducted -
(b) Transactions with enterprises under control or enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel have significant influence:
0 Epack Component Private Limited ( Formerly Known as E- Sale of goods/Service 1.80
Durables) Purchase of goods -
i) _Ennov Techno Tools Pvt. Ltd. Expenses Paid to be reimbursed 0.69
Sale of goods/ Service 5,131.45
Loan given 300.00
..« Epack Durable Limited (formerly known as Epack Durable Loan repaid . 300.00
(i) Solutions Private Limited) Interest received 0.29
Sale of Land Rights 1,181.51
Purchase of goods 754.31
Rent Paid -
Purchase of Goods 842.04
Sale of Goods 1,368.14
(iv) EastIndia Technologies Put, Ltd. Interest received -
TDS Receivable -
Expenses Reimbursement 1.49
(v) Eastindia Auto Trader Pvt Ltd Purchase of Goods / Service -
(vi) Decent Softech Private Limited Sale of Goods/Service _ -
Reimbursement of Expenses paid -
(vil) Epack Prefabricated Limited Reimbursement of Expenses -
(viii) Mool Chand Eatables Pvt. Ltd. Festival Expenses -
(c) Transactions with Subsidiary and Associate Company
0 Epack Prefab Solutions Private Limited( Formerly Known as Epack]Rent Expense 18.00
Buildcon Private Limited) TDS Deducted 1.80
Advanced against Supply 496.07
Unsecured Loan given @ 9% p.a -
Investment in Equity Shares -
(i) Epack Petrochern Solutions Pvt Ltd. (Formerly Known as E- Sale of Goods/Services -

Durables Electronics Pvt Ltd.)-

Purchase of Goods
Advance received against GIDC Plant Construction Order
Advance (Reimbursement) received back

Advances against supply received back




()

*Consideration of benefits payable to Key Managerial Personnel are in respect of Holding Group

Details of balances with related parties (in accordance with Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures)

Amountin Lacs

Name of Related Party Nature of Transaction As at 31st March 2022
a) Balances with Key Managerial Personnel:
Salary Payable 5.08

(i) Mr. Sanjay Singhania Loan/Interest Payable 4.66

Reimbursement of Expenses (Receivable) 8.30
Salary Payable 0.48
(i) Mr. Ajay Singhania Loan / Interest Payable 25.15
Advance Receivable -
Rent payable -
@iy Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra Security Deposi? Given 125.00
Advances Receivable -
Salary Payable 7.05
Loan Receivable -
(iv) Mr. Bajrang Bothra Advance / Reimbursement of Expenses Receivable 4,52
Director salary Payable (1.88)
Rent Payable 4.05
(v) Mrs. Preeti Singhania Security deposit Given 125.00
Loan / Interest Payable 85.52
Loan / Interest payable 72.44
. ! ’ . Expenses to be reimbursed -
(Vi) Mrs. Pinky Singhania Security deposit Given 125.00
Rent payable 2.05
Expenses to be reimbursed -
(vii) Mr. Nikhil Bothra Consultancy Payable -
Salary Payable 1.03
(viil)_Mr. Amit Singhania Loan / Interest payable 71.12

] L ! . Loan / Interest payable 40.24
(ix) Ms. Divisha Singhania Salary Payable
(x) __Ms. Drishika Singhania Loan / Interest Payable 124.76
(x) Ms. Avishi Singhania Loan / Interest payable 224.76

" ! Security deposit Given 125.00
(xii) Mrs. Leela Devi Bothra Rent payable 203
(xiii) Mrs. Suman Bothra Consultancy Fee payable -
xiv) Mrs. Anju Singhania Loan / Interest payable 79.48
(xv) _Ms. Anishka Singhania Loan / Interest payable 49.21
xvi) Mr. Devki Nandan Pareek Salary Payable 0.81

" Salary Payable 0.75
(xvii) Mr. Pradeep Pradhan Advance against Salary (Recoverable) -
xviii) Mrs. Madhu Agarwal Loan / Interest payable -

(b) Balances with enterprises under control or enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel have significant influence:
0 Epack Component Private Limited ( Formerly Known as E- Trade Receivable 1.94
Durables)

" Receivable against expenses paid 3.75
(i) Ennov Techno Tools Pvt. Ltd. Trade Receivable 141
(iii) Epac}( Duralple Limitgd (formerly known as Epack Durakle Trade Receivable (Net) 388.04

Solutions Private Limited)

iv) East India Technologies Pvt, Ltd. Trade Receivable (Net) 410.37
(v) EastIndia Auto Trader Pvt Ltd Trade Payable -
(vi) Decent Softech Private Limited Advance from Customer ( For Sale) -
(vii) Mool Chand Eatables Pvt. Ltd. Advance to Suppliers -
viii) Epack Prefabricated Limited Reimbursement of Expenses (Receivable) -
ix) Ennov infra Solutions Pvt. Ltd. Advance Receivable 0.78
(c) Balances with Subsidiary and Associate Company:

0 Epack Prefab Solutions Private Limited( Formerly Known as Epack|Security Deposit Given 326.29

Buildcon Private Limited) Rent Payable 62.25
Advance from Customer ( For Sale) -

(i) Epack Petrochem Solutions Pvt Ltd. (Formerly Known as E- X;s:sg;e(d}?t?r:gu?;\::r:e%)grz)ceivable 9-3 1
Durables Elggtronics Pt Ltd.) . ’

e Advanced against Supply 505.37
A Y A, Trade Receivable -
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45 Segment Reporting

U An operating segment is a component of the Com,

(i

(a

(b

)

=

=

pany that engages in business activities from whi

inancial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED EPACK

ch it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose

operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") to make decisions for which discrete financial information is
available. The Company identifies operating segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and return and the internal organisation and
management structure and for which discrete financial information is available. The CODM monitors the operating results of the segments for the purpose of

making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment, The

Company prepares its segment information in conformi

policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

The operating segment has been identified and reported taking into account its internal financial reportin
structure of its operations. Operating segment is reported in the manner evaluated by board, considered

ty with the accounting

g, performance evaluation and organizational
as chief operating decision maker under Ind AS 108

“Operating Segments”. The Company has two key business segment of activity, namely "EPS (Expanded Polystyrene) Packaging” and “Pre-engineered and

Prefabricated Building Solutions”, in accordance with the definition of “Segment”
segments.

EPS (Expanded Polystyrene) Packaging: The Company is recognized as one of the largest manufacturer of EPS

India. Its products serve a wide range of industries, including consumer electronics,
a high degree of precision, ensuring quality and compliance with industry standards.

Pre-engineered and Prefabricated Building Solutions: The Company has grown into a significant
buildings (PEB) segment, providing solutions for industrial, commercial, and residential sectors. The Com
engineered building solutions, offering everything from light-gauge steel framing (LGSF) to fully fabricated steel structures. Its so

commercial, and institutional projects, ensuring high durability, cost efficiency, and reduced construction time.

Segment EBITDA and Profit / (Loss) are as under:

covered under indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 108 on operating

(Expanded Polystyrene) packaging in
appliances, and cold storage. The EPS products are manufactured with

player in the pre-engineered and prefabricated
pany also specializes in prefabricated and pre-
lutions cater to industrial,

Amount in Lacs

As at 31st March 2022
Pre-engineered
. EPS (Expanded and
Particulars Polystyrene) Prefabricated Unallocated Total
Packaging Building
Solutions
Profit/(Loss) After Tax 529.27 1,420.55 244 1,952.26
Tax Expenses 185.33 469.28 3.74 658.35
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 714.60 " 1,889.83 6.18 2,610.61
Other Income (256.23) (54.59) (18.00) (328.82)
Exceptional income / (expenses) (Net) - - - -
Depreciation and amortization expense 480.08 215.67 6.96 702.71
Finance cost 180.98 367.01 3.47 551.47
Adjusted EBITDA 1,119.44 2,417.92 {1.39) 3,535.97
Segment revenue:
Segment Revenue and reconciliation of the same with total revenue as follows:
Amount in Lacs
Year ended 31st March 2022
Particulars Segment Inter - Segment Revenue From
Revenue Revenue External
Pre-engineered and Prefabricated Building Solutions 30,523.99 - 30,523.99
EPS (Expanded Polystyrene) Packaging 14,486.56 - 14.486.56
Total Revenue 45,010.56 - 45,010.56

The Company’s operations are located in India

and outside India. The amount of its revenue from e

which customers are located irrespective of origin of the goods or services are given below:

xternal customers analysed by the country in

Amount in Lacs

Year ended 31st

Particulars March 2022

Within India 44,803.10
Outside India 207.45
Total Revenue 45.010.56

Segment Assegmqu«&uabilities and reconciliation of the same with total assets and total liabilities are as follows:
P

El "y

Amount in Lacs

As at 31st March 2022

=




Pre-engineered

R EPS (Expanded and
Particulars
outa Polystyrene) Prefabricated Unallocated Total
Packaging Buiiding
Solutions
Segment Assets 10,289.33 19,508.03 768.90 30,566.26
Segment Liabilities 6,315.04 13,161.34 879.01 20,355.40

The Group is not reliant on revenues from transactions with an
10% of the Group’s revenue for the Period / years ended on M

y single external customer. Only One customer (named L.G. ELECTRONICS INDIA} contributed more than
arch 31, 2023 (i.e. 12,77%) and March 31, 2022 {i.e. 15.75%) amounting INR 8394.60 Lakhs and INR
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46 Fair Value Measurements
(A) Accounting classification and fair vaiues

As at 31st March, 2022

Amount in Lacs

Particulars Fair Va:::;‘-through Fair Value through OC! Amortised Cost Total Carrying Value Total Fair Value
Financial Assets

Investments (Refer Note 5) - - - - -
Other Financial Assets (Non - Current) - - 1.48 1.48 148
Trade Receivables - - 6,579.25 6,579.25 6,579.25
Cash and cash equivalents - - 65.68 65.68 65.68
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalen - - 649.00 649.00 649.00
Loans & Advances - - 110.30 110.30 110.30
Other Financial Assets (Current) - - 728.41 728.41 728.41
Total Financial assets - - 8,134.12 8,134.12 8,134.12
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings (Non-Current) - - 4,454.19 4,454.19 4,454.19
Lease Liabilities (Non-Current) - - 338.91 338.91 338.91
Other Financial Liabilities (Non-Current) - - 526.45 526.45 526.45
Borrowings (Current) - - 2,810.51 2,810.51 2,810.51
Lease Liabilities (Current) - - 38.96 38.96 38.96
Trade payables - - 8,158.82 8,158.82 8,158.82
Other Financial Liabilities (Current) - - 1,456.01 1,456.01 1,456.01
Total Financial liabilities - - 17,783.86 17,783.86 17,783.86

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a

forced or liquidation sale,

(8

Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at fair value in the Balance sheet are grouped into three levels of a fair value heirarchy. The three levels are defined based on the

observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Leve! 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observabe for the asset or liability, either directly (.. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(2) The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fair value of financial assets by valuation techniques

As at 31st March, 2022
Amount in Lacs
. Quoted prices Significant Significant
Particulars Date of Valuation Fair m:lrl:; 5125032315t in Active Markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)

Financial Assets
Investments - - - - -
*There is no movement from between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3

(b) Financial Instruments amortised at cost

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a resonable approximation of their fair values since the Group does not
anticipate that the carrying amounts will be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.

47 Financial Risk Management, Objective and Policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprises of trade and other payables. The Group's financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash & cash equivalents that it
derives directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to a variety of risks namely market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Group’s
senior management is supported by the Board of Directors that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Group. This provides
assurance to the Group’s senior management that the Group's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised
as below:

(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.

s -

The carrying amotints of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure. Credit risk assessment on various components is described below:




(i} Trade Receivables

The exposure to credit risk on accounts receivables and amounts due from related parties is monitored on an ongoing basis by the management and these are considered recoverable

by the Group's management. Accounts receivables were outstanding from few customers and hence the Group has concentration of accounts receivables and

The following year/period end trade receivables though overdue, are expected to be realiced in the normal course of business and hence, are not considered impaired as at 31st March

2022 :

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

As at 31st March 2022

Neither impaired nor past due
Past due but not impaired

0-6 Months 6,223.53
6 Months - 12 Months 264.47
More than 12 Months 91.25
Total 6,579.25

Details of allowances for expected credit losses are provided hereunder:

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

As at 31st March 2022

At the beginning of the period/year

Additions during the periodfyear 139.83
Adjustments during the period/year
Total 139.83

{ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents, Bank Deposits and Investments

The Group maintains its cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and investment with reputed banks, financial institutions, and corporates. The credit risk on these instruments is

limited because the counterparties are banks and high credit rated financial institutions and corporates assigned by credit rating agencies.

(iii) Other Financial Assets

This consists of loans and advances given to Employees and Security Deposits given to lessors as well as to utitity providers like Electricity companies. These carries limited credit risk

based on the financial position of parties and Group's historical experience of dealing with these parties.

{b) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and deposits.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wilf fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The exposure of the Group's fixed rate

financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

The exposure of the Group's financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

As at 31st March 2022

Closing Balance of Borrowings
Sensitivity analysis of impact on profit or loss due to change in interest rate:

Increase by 1%
Decrease by 1%

7,264.71

(72.65)
72.65

(ii) Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument wilt fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices and related market variables for investments in debt oriented mutual
funds and other financial instruments caused by factors specific to an individual investments, its issuer and market. The Group's exposure to price risk arises from diversified

investments in mutual funds, preference shares and other equity instruments and classified in the balance sheet at fair value.

The exposure of the Group's investments to price risk is as follows:

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

As at 31st March 2022

Closing Balance of Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (Investment in Unquoted Mutual Funds)

Sensitivity analysis of imapct on profit or loss due to changes in prices of investments

Increase by 5%
Decrease by 5%

Closing Balance of Investments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (Investment in Unquoted Preference
Shares and Other Equity Instruments)

Sensitivity analysis of imapct on other comprehensive income due to changes in prices of investments
Increase by 5%
Decrease by 5%




{iii)

(iv)

(c)
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Commodity Risk
Exposure to market risk with respect to commaodity prices primarily arises from the Group's purchases and sales of pharmaceutical ingredients, including the raw material components
for such pharmaceutical ingredients. These are commodity products, whose prices may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time. Cost of raw materiats forms the largest portion

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group undertakes transactions (e.g. sale of goods, purchase of capital goods, etc.) denominated in foreign currencies and thus is exposed to exchange rate fluctuations. The Group
is therefore, exposed to foreign currency risk principally arising out of foreign currency movement against the Indian currency.The Group evaluates its exchange rate exposure arising
from foreign currency transactions and manages the same based upon approved risk rnanagement policies,

The Group evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and puts in place a Financial Risk Management Policy to identify the most effective and efficient
ways of managing the currency risks,

Amount in Lacs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2022
Foreign Currency INR
Financial Assets
US Dollar (USD) NiL NIL
Impact on Profits NIL NIL
Increase by 1% NIL NIL
Decrease by 1% NIL NIL
Financial Liabilities
US Dollar (USD) NiL NIL
Impact on Profits NIL NiL
Increase by 1% NIL NIL
Decrease by 1% NIL NIL
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets. The Group
follows a Conservative policy of ensuring sufficient liquidity at all times through a strategy of profitable growth, efficient liquidity at alf times through a strategy of profitable growth,
efficient working capital management as well as pruduent capital expenditure, The Group has a overdraft facility with banks to support any temporary funding requirements.

The Group has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short-term, medium-term, and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and by continuously monitoring cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

Maturities of Financial Liabilities
The tables below analyse the Group's financial fiabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities:

As at 31st March, 2022
Amount in Lacs

Particulars Less than 1 Year More than 1 Year Total

Borrowings 2,810.51 4,454.19 7,264.71
Lease Liabilities 38.96 338.91 377.87
Trade payables 8,158.82 - 8,158.82
Other Financial Liabilities 1,456.01 526.45 1,982.46
Total 12,464.30 5,319.55 17,783.86

Capital Management

For the purpose of Group's capital management, Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the Group and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Group's
capital management is to safeguard its ability to continue as going concern and to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and maximize shareholder value. The Group
determines the capital management requirement based on annual operating plans and long term: and other strategic investment plans. The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented in the balance sheet. The funding requirements are predominately met through equity, debt and revenue
generated from operations.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sefl non-core assets to
reduce the debt,

The following table summarizes the capital of the Group
Amount in Lacs

Particulars As at 31st March 2022
Debt (a) 7,264.71
Cash and cash equivalents (b) 65.68
Net debt (c)=(a)-(b) 7,199,03
Total Equity/ Net Worth 10,210.86
Gearing Ratio et 70.50%
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EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE

LIMITED EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated
51 Additional Statutory Information - Ratios:

(a) Current Ratio = Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities

Amount in Lacs

. As at 31st March
Particulars 2022
Current Assets 15,834.34
Current Liabilities 14,324.16
Ratio (Times) 1.11
% Change from previous year (18.49)

Reason for change more than 25% - Not applicable

(b) Debt Equity Ratio = Total Debt divided by Total Equity

Amount in Lacs

Particul As at 31st March
articulars 2022

Total Debt 7,264.71
Total Equity 10,210.86
Less: Non - Controlling Interests : -

Equity attributable to the Owners of the Holding Group 10,210.86
Ratio (Times) 0.71
% Change from previous year 54.81

Reason for change more than 25% -

During FY 2021-22, total debt of the group has increased significantly whereas total equity has increased marginally

resulting into increase in Debt Equity Ratio.

{c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for servicing debt divided by total interest and principal repayl

Amountin Lacs

As at 31st March

Ratio (Times)
% Change from previous year

Particulars 2022

Profit before tax 2,610.61
Add: Depreciation 702.71
Add: Finance Cost 551.47
Adjusted Profit 3,864.79
Interest cost on borrwings 211.69
Principal repayments 665.77
Total of Interest and Principal Repayments 877.46

4.40

Reason for change more than 25% -Not Applicable




(d) Return on Equity Ratio = Profit after tax divided by Average Equity

Amount in Lacs

As at 31st March

% Change from previous year

Particulars 2022

Profit after tax 1,952.26
Less: Share of Profit /(Loss) of minority interest -
Consolidated Net Profit after tax, for the year/period attributable to equity shareholders 1,952.26
Total Equity 10,210.86
Less: Non - Controlling Interests -
Equity attributable to the Owners of the Holding Company 10,210.86
Average Shareholder's Equity ** ) 9,226.37
Ratio (%) 21.16

** Return on Equity is computed by considering Average Shareholder's fund for FY 2021-22 Closing Shareholder's fund is

considered.
Reason for change more than 25% - Not Applicable

(e) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio = Credit Sales divided by Average Trade Receivables

Amount in Lacs

As at 31st March

Ratio (Times)
% Change from previous year

Particulars 2022
Revenue from Operations 45,010.56
Average Trade Receivables 5,412.91

8.32

Reason for change more than 25% - Not applicable

() Trade Payables Turnover Ratio = Credit Purchases divided by Average Trade Payables

Amount in Lacs

As at 31st March

Ratio (Times)
% Change from previous year

Particulars 2022
Credit Purchases 31,401.34
Average Trade Payables 5,513.10

5.70

Reason for change more than 25% -Not Applicable

(9) Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of Goods Sold divided by Average Inventory

Amountin Lacs

Ratio (Times)
% Change from previous year

Particulars As at 31st March
2022

Cost of Goods Sold 31,118.83

Average Inventory 3,880.22

8.02

Reason for change more than 25% - Not Applicable




(h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Average Working Capital

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

As at 31st March

% Change from previous year

2022
Revenue from Operations 45,010.56
Average Working Capital 2,154.28
Ratio (Times) 20.89

Reason for change more than 25% - Not Applicable. )

(i) Net Profit Ratio = Restated Profit after Tax divided by Revenue from Operations

Amount in Lacs

As at 31st March

% Change from previous year

Particulars 2022

Profit after Tax 1,952.26
Total Income 45,321.38
Ratio (%) 4.31

Reason for change more than 25% - Not Applicable

(i} Return on Capital Employed = Adjusted EBIT/ Total Capital Employed

Amount in Lacs

% Change from previous year

. As at
Particulars 31st March 2022
Profit before Tax 2,610.61
Add: Finance Cost 551.47
Less: Other Income (310.82)
(Add) / Less: Share of (Profit) / Loss of Associate Co. -
Earnings Before Interest and Taxes 2,851.26
Net Worth 10,210.86
Total Debt 7,264.71
Total Capital Employed 17,475.57
Average Total Capital Employed ** 14,752.56
Ratio (%) 19.33

*k

Capital employed is considered.
Reason for change more than 25% -

Return on Capital employed is computed by considering Average Total Captial Employed for FY 2021-22 Closing




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED EPACK
POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN

- U74999UP1999PLC116066

Notes to Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated
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Dividend on Equity Shares
Amount in Lacs

Year ended 31st March

Parti
articulars 2022

Dividend on equity shares declared and paid during the period/year
Dividend per equity share of face value % 2 each (30th September 2024: NIL, 31st -
March 2024: NIL, 31st March 2023: Nil, 31st March 2022: Nil, 31st March 2021: Nil
per equity share of face value ¥ 2 each)

Dividend distribution Tax on Dividend

Total -

COVID - 19 Assessment
Due to outbreak of COVID-19 globally and in India, the Group has considered the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on its business aperations and financial results based

on its review of current indicators of future economic conditions and believes that the impact is likely to be short term in nature. The management does not see any
medium to long term risks in the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due.

However, the impact assessment of this pandemic is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. Despite reduced cases of
COVID-19 being reported in the world, there have been massive disruptions in supply chain especially from global. Accordingly, the Group will continue to monitor any
material changes to future economic conditions.

The management is of the opinion that while the COVID-19 may have minor adverse impact on its business in the short-term, it does not anticipate material medium to
long term risks to the business prospects. Further, the impact assessment of Covid-19 is a continuous process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and
conditions, accordingly the Group will continue to monitor any material changes to economic conditions and its impact on the business.

Other Statutory Information

(i) The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding have been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.

(ity The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties relating to Right of use assets where the Group is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the Group) disclosed in the Restated Financial Information included in (Property, Plant and Equipment and capital work-
in progress) are held in the name of the Group.

(iiiy The Group did not have any transactions with Companies struck off,

(iv) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(v) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the respective financial years.

(vi) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii} The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(viii) The Group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the income Tax Act, 1961).

(ix) None of the Group entities have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority,

(X

ey

The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restrictions on Number of
Layers) Rules, 2017.

Social Security Code

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in September
2020. The Cade has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules /
interpretation have not yet been issued, The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it come into effect and will record any related impact in the period the
Code becomes effective. Based on a preliminary assessment, the Group believes the impact of the change will not be significant.

The subsidiaries Epack Prefab Solutions Private Limited and Epack Petrochem Solutions Private Limited have a negative net worth as of 31st March, 2022. The
negative net worth amounts to INR 83.15 Lacs and INR 16.96 Lacs respectively. The financial statements of the subsidiary have been prepared on a going concern
basis as the parent company has committed to providing the necessary financial and operational support. This situation does not affect the overall solvency or
operations of the Group. The substantial part of the liabilities of the subsidiaries is towrads its Holding Company only. The management of the Parent Company does
not see any financial crisis on the subsidiaries




55 Social Security Code

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in September
2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules /

interpretation have not yet been issued. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it come into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code
becomes effective. Based on a preliminary assessment, the Group believes the impact of the change will not be significant.

56 Events after Balance Sheet Date

(i) Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of Members held on October 26, 2024, the name of the Company has
been changed from “Epack Polymers Private Limited” to “Epack Prefab Technologies Private Limited”.

(i) The Holding Company has been converted from Private Limited Company to & Public Limited Company pursuant to resolution of shareholders passed at the Extra
Ordinary General Meeting dated December 04, 2024. A fresh certificate of incorporation with the name "EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED" was issued

by the Registrar of Companies (ROC) on December 11, 2024.The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 as refevant to the public limited company has been effective
from the date of approval by ROC i.e. December 11, 2024. E

§7 The previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with those of current period's classification

As per our Report of even date

For Talati & Talati LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
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